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Summary of Financial Information

‘ﬁaqam\amﬂ?ﬂu (Financial Highlights) g 1,000 U19/Unit:1,000 Baht
2551/2008 2550/2007 2549/2006

I unSnenyuisy Total current assets 401,072 657,611 877,443
RuawuIzyze - 9188W 9 Other long-term investment-net 88,882 113,749 120,149
ﬁua\mﬂuﬁﬁwi’m Investments in associated company 188,599 56,249 72,261
fifiu o1Ans LLa:qUﬂiiﬁ— 75 Property, Plant and equipment, net 481,485 595,461 664,885
T unsne  Total assets 1,162,551 1,423,907 1,735,416
5’3&1/1‘1“3“14%34141,’32114 Total current liabilities 392,084 672,204 940,812
32wl ulsimyuidsu Total non current liabilities 109,358 58,822 96,230
33 uzeeKFaVU Total shareholders’ equity 661,109 692,881 698,374
swgla Total revenues 1,009,507 1,665,056 2,057,378
ﬁunumw wazUINNS Cost of sale and services 847,365 1,409,640 1,862,618
mlzans21y wazL3m3 Selling and administrative expenses 121,663 204,479 127,103
ﬁw‘l%aiwﬁu Other expenses 20,968 - -
suAlsany Total Expenses 989996 1614119 1,989,721
mlFanemen 3Ry Finance costs 21,650 37,956 46,022

quupshls@anwanSuasuluy3iisan Share of income(loss) from
investments in associates (15,843) 3,401 4,162
fls (@1eu) 95 Net income(loss) for the year (17,982) m 16,382 n 25,797

85131 UNMNA13NY (Financial Ratio )

2551/2008 2550/2007 2549/2006

fls (W199U) qw%ﬁiaﬁu () Earnings (Loss) per share (Baht) (0.87) (0.10) 0.11
ﬁuﬂuwa@iaﬁu (W) Dividends per share (Baht) - - -
gaﬁ’]ﬁumuﬁ'zy% () Total Shareholders’ equity per share (Baht) 11.02 11.65 11.64
Sasls@iany) vsaes1elazan (%) Retum on sales (%) (1.78) 0.98 1.25
S HARPLUNUEFTDYU (%) Return on Equity (ROE) (%) (2.66) 2.35 3.84
FRIINANDUWIUANA"WNSWE (%) Return on Assets (%) (1.39) 1.04 1.40
51 Uil "use JuzeeFEVU (W ) Debt/Equity ratio 076 06 148
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anasandnou 34 &M wazmauMIRuemzAams fnafls 5 30 awwm Wsduanndaeuld awum

Tupud 2652 U3 SenadiunansenuanningaAssRafiiiatusgseneialan nadfe gnA1zzasdi ‘e
dnwauzns “Waunazaaliiuiutayas waz wueUITIMU MuNIRaA 1A umSadutade deessuEeiy usnaninaialungy
Uszma EU Talvany Wayivannsgiu uasiFesnnuiufinseuse “sau wundndumiliiufinne~winaey inaspuauaseeusenuiiuny
Feuswn ladiaeu aumsal iemmuauuInawsmsdamsiniss “vEnn wazU3unIzuIunsnanLfieney UPIANNABINITBNGNAN UAZ
ATFIUANS il MNANTENUFINGNITNAY DIN WANITNUAUALAD DIUENNMITLIEUSEN fafuussn Sevanu dufivee
AENIUIMNIAMIL " Baun1idu Tagemnzaeneierny MmAapsmean1iiu sgnalsfinuiduiienemunen anumsaiane azSufustulung
tangd 2652

TuunaespaIATINAIUAIT JUSMT uaswineu veveunstAUEToTY uaskl ldLy Alalnms T yuussne
mwfilanaon U3E seiufsyinausadinemn anseaUiuisy enumsal wastarnanamsussiunugsia lnsasnenenudnm anuam
Magatln nnsasifunulasnsmeios uazlniinansuunuunvugdonulusrazen

B e

U 1IATINFUNT ITTNIIARUN
1J5¢51UNTINNANT




Board of Directors’ Report

In 2008, the Thai economy tended to slow down continuously from the previous year and entered into the regression
during the year-end period. In the middle of the year, there were several significant negative factors affecting the cost of
production and expenses; for examples, Baht appreciation during the first half of the year; gradually increasing prices of raw
materials, including fuel expenses and minimum wage adjustments for twice. These factors had more severe negative impacts
than the outcomes from the Company’s measures to reduce the cost of production and expenses.

As the Company has sought some other supplementary guidelines for its continuous business operations with some
worthy returns; on June 24™, 2008, the Board of Directors’ Meeting has passed its resolution to approve an establishment of a
joint venture between the Company and Ten Cate Advanced Textiles BV of the Netherlands under the name of Ten Cate-Union
Protective Fabrics Asia Ltd., to operate its business in dyeing and finishing industry for the protective and safety workware.
According to the business plan of the new joint venture, it was expected that the investment returns would be worthy within a
timeframe of 5 years.

As of December 31%t, 2008, according to the financial statements in which the equity method is applied, the
Company had its total income of 1,010 million Baht; whereas, the majority of its incomes was obtained from its sale and
services, totally 918 million Baht, decreased by 40% from the previous year because its customers have postponed the
purchase orders and the Company has ceased its business operation in the dyeing process as from August 16", 2008;
meanwhile, the Company had its other income of 92 million Baht, including incomes from the sale of remnants of raw materials,
profits from the disposal of unused assets, and the like; the Company had its total expenses of 990 million Baht, including the
cost of sale and services, totally 847 million Baht; selling and administrative expenses, totally 122 milion Baht, and other
expenses including allowance for impairment of investments in ordinary shares, totally 21 million Baht. The Company had its
profits before financial expenses, totally 20 million Baht; the financial expenses included the interest expense and bank fees,
totally 22 million Baht; and the recognition of its share of loss from investments in the joint venture, totally 16 million Baht.

In summary, the Company’s operating result of 2008, according to the financial statements in which the equity method
is applied, the Company had its net loss of 18 million Baht, decreased by 34 million Baht from the previous year; and according
to the Separate financial statements, the Company had its net profit of 30 million Baht, increased by 13 million Baht from the
previous year.

In early 2009, the Company has still been facing impacts from the world economic crisis, i.e., its customers have
postponed the purchase orders and the quantity of products at each time of purchase has decreased, and the hand-over of
product has been urgent; in marketing, the product prices were crucial factors of the situation of competitions; moreover, the
EU market has emphasized the standard of products and social responsibility such as environmental-friendly products, labour
protection standard, etc. The Company has followed up the situation to determine effective guidelines of administration and
management and to adjust its production process to meet the customers’ demands and standards; moreover, the above-
mentioned situation may have negative impact on the Company’s financial status; therefore, the Company has specially
emphasized its financial risk management, particularly the financial liquidity; however, it was expected that the situations would
start to recover by the year-end of 2009.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the management, and employees of the Company, | would like to thank all
shareholders and stakeholders for their continuous support to the Company; the Company is committed to operate the work at
its full capacity in order to cope with the situations and problems from business competitions and is in attempt to maintain its
continuous business operations and to generate the investment returns to its shareholders in the long term.

S%fﬁ-

Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana
Chairman
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Chairman
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Mr. Panas Simasathien
Vice Chairman
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Mr. Prasong Sukhum
Independent Director and Chairman
of The Audit Committee
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Mr. Sompop Amatayakul
Independent Director and Audit Committee
Chairman Nominating and RemunerationCommittee
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Mrs.Sangsawang Malikamas
Independent Director and Audit Committee
Nominating and Rermmeration Committee
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Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul
Director
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Mr. Vichai Chaitaneeyachat
Managing Director
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Mrs. Chantorntree Darakananda
Director
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Dr. Thitivat Suebsaeng
Director
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Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda
Director
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Mrs. Supung Tangsujaritpunt
Vice Managing Director
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Capt. Supich Sankhagowit

Assistant Managing Director
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07y 61 1

Fruudfuunssuns 15 4

Swnusuiie 27,010 W

Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana Chairman

Age 61

Years of Directorship 15 Years

Shareholding 27,010  Shares

WNTANW o P3aanln vivsgsia wnsdans  andutudinudnassRadAuns uAe arasnsalnTIng &y

o USans mdisuen aswazmstad sgmmmzﬁwﬁwma"ﬂ @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) éu 18/2004

U3z ums3al ® n3suMIREIENs via. neiflou @ nIsuNIKEWIENS VA, gillougn W wme

® Usz5unssums vua. gillounan fin @ Uszsnunssunts va. gillsulne-Tatu e Uszsnunssuns va. yiflauledyd

shunusnudaaiiy . e dszsunssuns vaa. giileugn mnssu me @ Yszsunsiuns vaa. gillsulnleidss

@ 99UITBUNTINANT NUNTNURAZANTAU DA, %%JL‘ijEJu ® 399UITHUNTINANT DYA. quLﬁ'sJuwa’] fin

® 5991325uN 3TN LA, giilsumalulad (2008) @ Yszsunssums va. giilsudnla

o nysunsudEname Tunau wellau
Education ; @ Bachelor’s Degree, Accounting ,Chulalongkorn University @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 18/2004

® Master’s Degree (Management), SASIN Graduate Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University
Experiences : @ President, Saha - Union Plc. @ Director, Union Textiles Industries Plc. @ President, Union Plastic Plc.

® Chairman, Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd. ® Chairman, Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd.
Current Positions : @ Chairman, Union Textiles Industries Plc.. ® Chairman, Union Pioneer Plc.
@ Vice Chairman (Securities Department)/ President, Saha-Union Plc. ® Vice Chairman, Union Plastic Plc.

@ Vice Chairman, Union Technology(2008) Plc. @ Chairman, Union Nifco Co., Ltd. @ Director, Companies in Saha-Union Group

a3 Wi Tugy fiws 3991355 UNIINANT

01y 76 I

fudidunssums 12

Suruuitie 0 wu

Dr.Panas Simasathien Vice Chairman

Age 76

Years of Directorship 15  Years

Shareholding 0  Shares

NSANW o Y3aygien 3153, University of Ilinois, U.S.A. @ Usganln F31ansifayd, University of Tinois, U.S.A.

@ B.A(Cum Laude) U3%1355A9, Claremont Men’s College, California, US.A. @ Uszmefiatns Aonn1stgyd anmingnausssum ns
@ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 2/2003
137 um3al o afufinsuiyTnats @ adufinau 33WNT @ UdANTzNI9NIAse @ Uszsunssuns suwinsneing $1in Gmim)
° %’ﬁil‘wﬁ’ﬁﬂ'ﬁﬂiz‘ﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ o Uszsnunssims msliidendaursyszindlng
Gﬁl,mmmuﬂ’a:!ﬁu : @ SNUSYSUATINAT WANTLIMNT DUA. %gLﬁw ® J3T5UATIUNT VYA, EﬂJLﬁIEJumﬂIuIaﬁ (2008)
©® 529UITHUNTIUAT VXA, gl,ﬁ'ﬂuaqm WMATIN WD @ NTTUANT LIA. ﬂuu%muﬂm
® F99UTUFULAUILFWATINANILEMNST UA. 8uingIsU @ UIUSIUATINANT LA, ﬂamﬁ'gmaéglﬂﬂu
o Uszsunssums va. gillsumalulad e Uszsunssums va, gillsuiduwesd e nswwms va, yilsuduwesd (o)
® 13251UN33UNNT ARZNITNMIRAILINNILATEAALA “PULTeT R @ UszsnunssumInguin Ausfl 12 Unausanssunsngeim
Education : @ Ph.D.(Accounting), University of Illinois, USA. @ M.S.( Accounting ), University of Illinois, USA.
® B.A.,(Cum Laude), Claremont Men’s College, California, USA. @ Certificate in Accounting, Thammasat University
@ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 2/2003
Experience : @ Director General, Comptroller General’s Department @ Director General, Revenue Department
@ Permanent Secretary of Ministry of Finance . @ Chairman Krung Thai Bank Plc. @ Minister of Finance .
@ Chairman of Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand
Current Positions : @ Vice Chairman (Executive), Saha-Union Plc. @ Chairman, Union Technology (2008) Plc. @ Vice Chairman , Union Textile Industries Plc.
@ Director, Siam Cement Plc. ® Vice chairman and executive Chairman, Siam Piwat Co., Ltd.
® Chairmany, Computer Union Co., Ltd. ® Chairman, Union Technology Company Limited @ Director, Union Energy Co., Ltd.
@ Director, Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd.@ Chairman, National Economic and Social Development Board

@ Chairman Board of Law Councillor (Law committee Number 12)
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01y 78 1

duaudiidunssuns 15 3

Swnusuiie 0 wu

Mr. Prasong Sukhum Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee

Age 78

Years of Directorship 15 Years

Shareholding 0 Shares

INIANBN o PSggn v3wsgsiia anTing1suenanin e Director Accreditation Program (DAP) §u11/2004

sz umsal ® $FULFRIILINNNINITLNINAILIAY @ FFUUASTINIINTENITNISTD @ wnBn MTATYAR @ UizsunsunnsesanIade LM

® NIIUMITUALIDNTINNTEWIBANT V31N [ngeawa 1in @ AT3ums mssatuetszmalng

® NIIUNTT ﬁ‘u’m’lil,ﬁ'ﬂﬂ’lil,ﬂiﬂﬁﬂl,az Wﬂ‘éﬂj
fuwnusuaaiiy : @ n53uN158 S/UsEUNTINMIATIA BU LA, gilauan mnssiwe e seuszsiunsunts vt o a an e
Education : ® Master’s Degree on Business Administration Harvard University @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 11/2004
Experience : @ Deputy Communication Minister ® Deputy Commercial Minister ® Member of Legislation Council

@ Chairman of Warehouse Organization @ Director and Deputy Director Thai Oil Co., Ltd.

@ Director of State Railway Authority of Thailand @ Director of The Bank of Agriculture & Cooperative

Current Positions : @ Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee Union Textile Industries Plc. ® Vice Chairman Osothsapa Co., Ltd.

UNY UAN  BUNBNA ATINANTD 32 / ATIUANTRTIN BU / UITHIUNTIUATT TIMUASAMUARIABUUNL

01y 68 1

Suudfidunssunig 12 1

Suuuitie 10,000 9y

Mr.Sompop Amatayakul Independent Director, Audit Committee, and Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration
Age 68

Years of Directorship 12 Years

Shareholding 10,000  Shares

WNSAn @ AN EBEAN ASNATNTITE aninendussIuen a3 Fulfl 3 @ Usyanns V35530 WTngdunansmineg

o S euiiudfiadnfudnd ausndaom asuaznnsayd aningndussauen a3
° ﬂ%zyfywquﬁﬂmﬁmﬁmﬁuﬁﬂﬁ WWIMIsIia antutadfiewamnuimsen a3
U5z unsal ; o ‘?ﬁuum%‘ﬂﬁwhmim:qum WMATIN @ UITHIUATIUANT SUIANTASUAT AR (1Y) @ UIT5IuATINANT MsIalnunadsemelng
® nsaMIEEIIMS DA, neiley e gaanstvg U To 9 1B Uszmelne dim
GT’leiiwﬁuﬂ’aaﬁu ;@ 709095 UATINANT 1AM BUNAZUSITuNaRAASUUSIMA  ATINMSE TPUasUIYSIUNTIUANIATIA B LA, %ENJL‘ﬁEJ‘u
® N33UN5D STHATUITBIUNTIUAITATIA DU UUA. ﬂul,ﬁﬂumﬂuiaﬁ' (2008)
® n35uM3B szuaslszsunIsIMIngIa oy vua. giileulnlefiss @ nsaunnsd szuazUszsnunIINNINTIA BU i, giilsunan fin
® Y525 UATINANIATIA U D8 18 1% YszmAlng dde (unou) @ nTINMTE ITHAZATINANIATIA DU UIA. ggﬁyuqm WnTIN"We
® 15e5unIIuM UM va. 080 3w wiwalum
Education : @ 3rd year of Commercial and Accounting, Thammasat University
@ Bachelor Degree’s, Business Management, The University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
@ Honorary Doctorate’s Degree from Thammasat University
@ Honorary Doctorate’s Degree from the National Institute of Development Administration
Experiences : @ Deputy minister, Ministry of Industry @ Chairman, Bank of Sri Nakorn Plc. ® Chairman, State Railway of Thailand
@ President, Saha-Union Plc. @ General Manager, IBM Thailand Co., Ltd.
Current Positions : @ Independent Director, Audit Committee, and Chairman of Nominating and Remuneration committee, Saha-Union Plc.
@ Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee, Union Technology (2008) Plc.
@ Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee, Union Pioneer Plc.
@ Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee, Union Plastic Plc. ® Chairman of Audit Committee, Esso Thailand Plc.
@ Independent Director, Audit Committee, and Chairman of Nominating and Remuneration committee,

Union Textiles Industries Public Co.,Ltd @ Executive Chairman, B.B. Business Management Co., Ltd.
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2y 67 1

duaudiidunssuns 7 0

Swnunuiie 0 wu

Mrs. Sanagsawang Malikamas Independent Director / Audit Committee / Nominating and Remuneration Committee

Age 67

Years of Directorship 10 Years

Shareholding 0 Shares

Wnsinw o 3o’ Ausndizndn asuaznsad awiasnsaliminends e Director Accreditation Program (DAP) §12/2003

U5 unsal o ympndanslvgy  suimanTaN R (Wpu) @ N3N A, Ineiduniaell e nITNAT UA. v1eneniBuniadnis

@T’ummxﬂuﬁaﬂﬁu ;@ NFTUNNTD FTUATATINNNTATIA DU VYA, aul,ﬁﬂumﬂiuiaﬁ' (2008) @ N37UN5D STWATUILBIUNTINNNTATIA DU UNA. ?JuLﬁiluwa’I #in
® N35uM3B SzuAznIINNIATIA au LA, giileulnlodiss @ n33un13d ssuaznsINIRTIR oL Uwa. giilaugn WnIs We
Education : @ Bachelor’s Degree, Commercial and Accounting, Chulalongkorn University @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 2/2003
Experiences : ® Manager-Business Investment Division, Bangkok Bank Plc. @ Director, Thai Central Chemical Plxc.
@ Director, Bangkok Central Leasing Co., Ltd.
Current Positions : @ Independent Director and Audit Committee , Union Technology(2008) Plc.
@ Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Union Plastic Plc.
@ Independent Director and Audit Committee, Union Pioneer Plc.

® Independent Director and Audit Committee , Union Textile Industries Plc.

weidy Sugrilsond A33UNIHAANTT

01y 64 1

Fuaudfdunssans 4 7

Suuuitie 0 wu

Mr. Vichai Chaitaneeyachat Managing Director

Age 64

Years of Directorship 4  Years

Shareholding 0  Shares

WNSAn o Samln 1w ITU5W5EIRA IMIaeNIAINMTINg &Y @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) qu 55/2006
U3 vmsal - o 133ums va. guoudnln @ nysumns va. gideu uauia  Fa Wsdn - e nssuAnsidans va. gilaulaasd

funriesnuiaaiiy ;@ n3suAsRdans uia. gillougn Mn-we @ n3Tuns U, giflsumad @ e asIuAT A, yiiluluesaundu
@ NITUNTT UA. EJ"LﬁEJUﬂ’I‘s:LQJP‘IJVi ® NITUNT LA, WUALA - EJ‘,LﬁEJuIﬂ‘«SWIﬂﬁWLLWUU%ﬂL?JL“TJEJ
Education : ® Master’s Degree in Business Administration, Chulalongkorn University @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 55/2006
Experience : @ Director, Union Nifco Co., Ltd. @ Director , Union Stainless Steel Products Co., Ltd. ® Managing Director , Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd.
Current Positions : @ Managing Director, Union Textile Industries Plc., ® Director, Union Tex-East Co.,Ltd. @ Director, Union Micron Clean Co.,Ltd.

@ Director, Union Garment Co.,Ltd. @ Director, Ten Cate - Union Protective Fabrics Asia Co.
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Dr. Thitivat Suebsaeng Director

Age b5

Years of Directorship 1 Years

Shareholding 0 Shares

WNsAnw ® YA m%@wﬁﬁmﬁm ( "afl) Marquette University, US.A. @ 3nenen asumiadia ( 1anefiundownd) wninenduidusing
® e aataudin ( 1w1Af) anTinensuiBeoslnl e Director Accreditation Program (DAP) §12/2003

U5 umsel ; ® W.A. 2546 - 2547 n594UN1T Union Education Management Co. Ltd.

® WA 2646 - 2550 Kdan3vhly Saha-Union Investment (China) Co.Ltd
fuvsnulagiiy : @ AsINAIEWIEAT Ui, nedou e Uszsnunssums i, giifsunan fin @ n3Tuns LA, giflsugn mas-ane
® n35ums vwa. gufisumalulad (2008) e nssun1s LA, gillsulnlowdiys e Yszsunssuns va. gulloulydsd
® Usz5un3suns va. gy wule afalsen - e Yszsunssuns A, giffsumsuun e Uszsnunssunns va. yuaulne-Gady
o nsaums va. gyiilouinln @ nssums va.udtn gieuiduiuesd (xn) e assumsuImaanllulssmedy 5 U3un
© NTIANT VAL LIUALA - yiilpulisinaiiviuun3a
Education : @ Ph.D. in Chemistry from Marquette University, U.S.A. @ M.Sc. (Chemistry), Chiangmai University
@ B.Sc. (Chemistry), Chiangmai University @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 21/2004
Experiences : @ Director, Union Education Management Co. Ltd. ® General Manager, Saha-Union Investment (China) Co.,Ltd
Current Positions @ President, Saha-Union Public Plc. ® Chairman, Union Plastic Plc. @ Director, Union Textile Industries Plc.
@ Director, Union Technology (2008) Plc. @ Director, Union Pioneer Plc. ® Chairman, Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd.
@ Chairman, Union Garment Co.,Ltd. @ Chairman, Union Stainless Steel Products Co., Ltd. ® Chairman, Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd.
@ Director, Union Nifco Co., Ltd. @ Director, Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. @ Director, 5 Cogeneration Companies in China

@ Director, Ten Cate - Union Protective Fabrics Asia Ltd.

UNAANA #a A3aNus A33UNIIDAANT

21y 59 I

Fuudfldunssums 5 0

Suruuite 69,020 7

Mrs.Supung Tangsujaritpunt Director

Age 59

Years of Directorship 5  Years

Shareholding 69,020  Shares

WA o Uz Allatnsisndw (17%) @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) i;u 2/2003

U5 unsal o finmsisnadunazay® va, yiflsuge mnssuey @ gdemThensRuLanTyE via. nydou weaAns

® nssusydans va. gieu Juilediaa
FunienUTaaiiy © @ N3INANT IR, vigiilou @ n3TuAnIIRNdans A, gillsugn masN-me @ assums va. gilsuduwesd (o)
@ n35um3 va. 311 1550 @ A3 va. yiflsu Jufiliaa @ n3sums va. Yiiludy
© NTIANT VA, INUALA - yuloulismafivuiun3e
Education : @ Certificate of Vocational Education (Accounting) @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 2/2003
Experience : @ Finance and Accounting Manager, Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd @ Finance and Accounting Manager, Saha-Union Plc. (Lad Prao)
® Managing Director, Union Spinning Mill Co.Ltd.
Current Positions : @ Director, Saha Union Plc. ® Vice Managing Director, Union Textile Industries Plc. @ Director, Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd.
@ Director, Venus Thread Co., Ltd. @ Director , Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. @ Director, Union Zipper Co., Ltd.

@ Director, Ten Cate - Union Protective Fabrics Asia Ltd.
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Fuaudidunsums 14

dwunuiide 45000 W

Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul Director

Age 52

Years of Directorship 14 Years

Shareholding 45,000  Shares

ANNTANW o USgaln  1wreNfIwes, 1nAngduBaduey  IHIDUTUINLA-1DDIIN Ustina wiFauEa

® USg w3 (Rushlondud 1) Anziasugen #3 ammmzﬁwﬁwmﬁa
® Awarded Diploma by passing the Examination of Australian IOD I 2001 @ Director Certification Program (DCP) ‘;'u 9/2001
@ Finance For Non-Finance Director (FN) ‘éu 1/2003 @ Audit Committee Program (ACP) 3;14 10/2005
3% umsal : ® n3suMILazas M3 1A, giflauduiunsd e nssunisuaziaryns va. gillsuduwest ()
® nssumIRdnns vaylsudnduneatausuneas’ @ assums via. gisulnlewys
[ ] ﬂi‘iuﬂ’ﬁiﬁ‘wﬁLLa:ﬂi‘iuﬂ’]‘ié‘ﬁ’méﬁ’m’mﬂﬁ Pya. WQLﬁEﬁJ ® N33UNNY Union Education Management Ltd.
FunUenUaaiiy - @ ATIUMIHIANT . gilies e n3IuAns iR, vy e AT A, AeNARSYLTEY
) ﬂ‘a‘iumiéﬁ'ﬂmi UA. ﬂamﬁaLmaéﬂ"Lﬁﬂu ° ﬂiiuﬂﬁﬂgﬁ'ﬂﬂﬁ UA. WQLﬁﬂuIaaﬁd ® NIIUNT VUA. QLﬁ'Uuqm WMATIN" WD
® N33 1A, 3 wiagslny @ n3Tums vA. giilsudedn A, srflunsydugn mns )
® NITUNTT UA. QL‘IjEJ‘uLL@ 0 Faasteiun (va. ﬁﬁﬁum‘fmﬁﬂumaé wauABaTI )
@ N334UN1T Yunan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd. ® n334n13 Yunan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd.
® NIIUNTT UA. gLﬁﬂuqm WATIUAY @ NTTUNT LA, Iiﬂmuiwqm TANTIN @ NTINNTT LA, @ui]ﬂﬁzmama
® n33unsU3ENANe nau oy
Education : @ Master’s Degree in Computer Science, University of Illinois at Urbana - Champaign, USA.
@ Bachelor’s Degree (First class honor) in Economics, Chulalongkorn University
® Awarded Diploma by passing the Examination of Australian I0D 2001
@ Director Certification Program (DCP) 9/2001 . Finance For Non-Finance Director (FN) 1/2003
@ Audit Committee Program (ACP) 10/2005 .
Experience : @ Director and Secretary, Union Energy Co., Ltd. @ Director and Secretary, Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd.
® Managing Director, Union Exim Consult and Services Co., Ltd. @ Director, Union Pioneer Plc.
® Executive Director and Assistant Managing Director, Saha-Union Plc. @ Director, Union Education Management Ltd.
Current Positions : @ Managing Director , Uni-Fiber Co., Ltd. ® Director, Saha-Union Plc. @ Director, Computer Union Co., Ltd.
@ Managing Director, Computer Union Co., Ltd. ® Managing Director, Saha Union Holding Co., Ltd.
@ Director, Union Textile Industries Plc. @ Director, Thai Rubber Enterprise Co.Ltd.
@ Director, Union Equity Co., Ltd. ( Thanin Union Industries Co., Ltd.)
@ Director, Union Asset Development Co., Ltd. ( Thanin Union Sales and Services Co., Ltd.)
@ Director, Yunan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd. @ Director, Yunan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd.
@ Director, Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. @ Director, Union Industries Co., Ltd. @ Director , Processing Center Co., Ltd.
@ Director, companies in Saha-Union group
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Fudidunsums 7 9

Swnunuiiae 27,700

Mrs. Chantorntree Darakananda Director

Age 45

Years of Directorship 7  Years

Shareholding 27,700  Shares

AWAsAnm ® J30mnn3 WNgAn A3 JRNANNIAINNTINENAY @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Ju 5/2003
U5y umsal - ® n33un1s U3Tene 9 Tungu wylau

funrienuaqiiy : @ n3suAs via. wgiisy @ A3suMs i, Tsmeuiaaens T @ AT v, giflaugn NI e
® n3umIesdans Ua. Yullaugn 1NIINAY @ ATTIMFIRNEANS 1A, 15euTINgn MA@ Asums va. giley Duildiaa
® n35um3 va. 3 1530 @ n3sunns Uisene 9 Tunqu nedeu
Education : @ Bachelor’s Degree in Medicine, Chulalongkorn University. @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 5/2003
Experience : @ Director of various companies of Saha-Union Group.
Current Positions : @ Director, Saha - Union Plc. @ Director, Ladprao General Hospital Plc. ® Director, Union Textile Industries Plc.
@ Assistant Managing Director, Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. ® Assistant Managing Director, Union Industries Co., Ltd.
@ Director, Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. @ Director, Venus Thread Co., Ltd. ® Director, Companies in Saha-Union Group

10



wpenwsee nd  asnuUn n3IUMT

gy 47
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Suuuiie 568,000 Wy
Mr.Aksornprasit Darakananda Director
Age 47

Years of Directorship 15 Years
Shareholding 568,000  Shares
NIANN

J3qe3 3N @5 1A, Georgia Institute of Technology, US.A.

Awarded Diploma by Examination of Australian IOD 1] 2001

Director Certification Program (DCP) i;u 5/2001

157 umsal : @ ns3uAs U3EMen o Tunqu sy @ n3sIMSUAMS / NS Mam wnsIuweLszwAlng

sumsulaatiy : @ n35ums va. lsenusingn mnsIw @ nsanms va. wiflsuduwesd e nsums una. gilsuan wnsINTwe

o nysum3 vua. gflsulnloidys @ nssums vna. iflsunar fn @ n3suns va. nywlzuloshs @ nsums va. gulleu Jufisdies

® n3uNsUaznIsUNNIUIMS va. giflsuduesd (lxun) @ nssums va.desdmilununms @ nssums va. giflsugn wnIsuY

® NTIUMIAANT DA, 3 1537 @ A33us via. neleu
Education : @ Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering, Field of Chemistry, Georgia Institute of Technology, USA.

® Awarded Diploma by Examination of Australian IOD 2001 @ Director Certification Program (DCP) 5/2001
Experience : . @ Director, companies in Saha-Union Group @ Executive Director / Director, The Federation of Thai Industries.
Current Positions : @ Director, Union Industries Co., Ltd. @ Director, Union Energy Co., Ltd. @ Director, Union Textile Industries Plc.

@ Director, Union Pioneer Plc. @ Director, Union Plastic Plc. @ Director, Saha Union Holding Co., Ltd.

@ Director, Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. @ Director and Executive Director, Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd.

@ Director, Chaingmai Night Bazaar, Co., Ltd. @ Director, Union Thread Industries Co.,Ltd.

® Managing Director, Venus Thread Co., Ltd. @ Director, Saha-Union Plc.

wen iz “wlain AFUMNIHBILHIANS

21 59 9

Suudfidunssuns 2 @

Suauuiie 0 wu

Capt. Supich Sankhagowit Assistant Managing Director

Age b9

Years of Directorship 2 Years

Shareholding 0 Shares

ANIANN @ USean Industrial Engineering, University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A.

o Uszmafasng lsadeu widmammsse  atiArmamnsisadu L9 @ Usganedifminssuiaienaiie lseSeumngise
@ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) s"u 63/2007

U5z umIal : ° éﬁmmﬁ whara sumelu vaA. mﬁauqm WA WD e ﬂ‘s‘;umipj@”ﬂmi Ua. qvﬁﬂu WUl fa lWsen

Fumieuagiy © @ NITMITIRAAMS DA, giilsugn s me

Education : @ MS in Industrial Engineering, University of Pittsburgh,U.S.A. @ Certificate in Naval Staff Course, Naval Staff College
@ BSc, Royal Thai Naval Academy @ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 63/2007

Experience : @ Internal Audit Manager, Union Textile Industries Plc. ® Managing Director of Union Stainless Steel Products Co., Ltd.

Current Positions : @ Assistant Managing Director Of Union Textile Industries Plc.
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General Information of The Company
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nuildszua
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“ineulngy
fidts - aofl 1828 auu 23AN wrw1en wemszlaus AN 10260
Tnswn : 0-2311-6111-9, 0-2323-5600
ns 13 :0-2323-3123
i 1
il : 1 205 wy 4 auu AN (Ma. 39.5) shuausflml S1apiEies ywsUTINT dwda yMIUTIMT 10280
Tnaffnn : 0-2323-1085-91
n3 13 :0-2323-9216
1217 2
fidia : 1anfl 65 vy 5 auULN - ATIA NA38 Fwaune AT BABLazAY dminasiBanT 24180
Tnsffw : 0-3853-8499, 0-3853-8640-3
Tns 13 : 0-3853-8639, 0-3853-8470

Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited
Type of Business Operations:
The Company operates the businesses of textile, yarn spinning, and fabric weaving.
Paid-up Capital:
The Company has its registered paid-up capital of 600 million Baht, divided into:
e 45,000,000 ordinary shares of 10 Baht each;
e 15,000,000 preferred shares of 10 Baht each;
Head Office :
Location : 1828 Sukhumvit Rd. Kwaeng Bangchak Khet Phrakanong, Bangkok 10260.
Telephone : (662) 311-5111-9 , 332-5600
Fax : (662) 332-3123

Branch 1
Location : 205 Moo 4, Sukhumvit Rd. (km 39.5) Bangpoo Mai, Muang District,Samutprakarn 10280.
Telephone: (662) 323-1085-91
Fax: (662) 323-9216

Branch 2
Location : 65 Moo 5, Bangna Trad Rd.(km.38) Bangsamak Bangpakong District, Chachoengsao 24180.
Telephone : (038) 538-499, 538-640-3
Fax : (038) 538-639, 538-470
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Samutprakarn 10280
Tel : (02) 323 1088
Fax :(02) 323 1089

FoudHn I dazingsna I Uszanmu I Auuny I uuny I  u
ppnd MUY fide mafienu
v3dn gillwiwas drin Fiaunu ey 1,200,000 250,001 20.83 %
1828 WU FUIN UDMNUINAN dmng "y
wanszluug N3eMNT 10260
Tnséwn 0-2311-5111-9
ns 13 0-2311-5668, 0-2332-5615
U3t giflsunimangsia din awulumsudng ey 5,000,000 949,993 19.00%
1828 auw 1AM WUNUIAN wazsulSnm
wanszlaus N34 10260 PUMILIM B q
Tnadwn 0-2311-5111-9, 0-2322-5600
s 13 0-2311-5616
v3sn guilsuluasaundu d1dn HAR“UA iy 500,000 665,000 13.00%
1828 AUy JU3N UUWNUNAN
wanszlous N34 10260
Tnadwn 0-2311-5111-9, 0-2322-5600
ns 13 0-2741-6145
u3m muene-gisuldsmaiin HAR ML Wy | 3,850,000 | 1,900,000 49.35%
wuuIALLIZY AR
205/1 g 4 DuY P3N nal. 39.5
auneflng 0.4809 2. ynats1ms 10280
Tnsdwn (02) 323 1088
s 13 (02) 323 1089 i I i I i
PERSONS HOLDING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AT 10% OR MORE OF PAID UP CAPITAL
TYPE OF TYPE OF ON.OF NO.OF PERCENTAGE
COMPANY BUSINESS SHARES SHARES SHARES OF SHARE
ISSUED HELD HOLDING

Uni-Fibre Co.,Ltd. Agent Ordinary | 1,200,000 250,001 20.83 %
1828 Sukhumvit Road, Kwaeng Bangjak,
Khet Phrakanong,Bangkok 10260
Tel. 0-2311-5111-9 Fax. 0-2332-5615
Union Business Management Co.,Ltd. Holding Ordinary | 5,000,000 949,993 19%
1828 Sukhumvit Road, Kwaeng Bangckak, Services,
Khet Phrakanong,Bangkok 10260 Consultant
Tel. 0-2311-5111-9, 0-2322-5600 and Others
Fax. 0-2311-5616
Union Micron Clean Co.,Ltd. Manufacturing Ordinary 500,000 65,000 13%
1828 Sukhumvit Road, Kwaeng Bangchak,
Khet Phrakanong, Bangkok 10260
Tel. 0-2311-5111-9, 0-2322-5600
Fax. 0-2741-6145
Ten Cate - Union Protective Fabrics Asia Ltd. Manufacturing Ordinary | 3,850,000 1,900,000 49.35%
205/1 Moo 4, Sukhumvit Rd. Km. 39.5, fabrics
Bangpoo Mai, Muang Distric, for work wear

13



yARADINBEY

wenzdaundnning
U3 Auesurnmanning Usznelng) S1in
i : 1anfl 62 DA ImANAnAANINEUszAlNe U 47 auuSEeNAlEN LYNAABNAY 1WARABNIAY AFANNY 10110
Tnafnm : 0-2359-1200-1
Tns 13 : 0-2359-1259
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WYUTA WUA9A
wpAnty Tyaiaily
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U3 18U N waus 59 i Bu 33 91ANTLansan
193/136-137 auuiBaAensalng n3emn 10110
Tnafnn : 0-2264-0777
s 15 0-2264-0789, 0-2661-9192

Other references
Registrar :
Thailand Securitier Depository Co., Ltd.
Address : 62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building 4,7 Floor Ratchadapisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110 Thailand
Telephone : (662) 359-1200-1
Fax : (662) 359-1259

Auditor :
Mr.Narong Puntawong
Mr. Supachai Phanyawattano
Miss Siraporn Ouaanunkun
Ernst & Young 33rd Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex
193/136-137 Rajada Road, Bangkok 10110
Telephone: (662) 264-0777
Fax: (662) 264-0789, 661-9192
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Nature of Business Operation

The Company was established on March 21st, 1997, operating its integrated businesses in the textile industry,
including yarn spinning, fabric weaving, dyeing, and finishing. On March 30th, 1994, the Company was registered as a public
company under the Thai law; and at present, Saha-Union (Public) Co., Ltd., and Union Business Management Co., Ltd., are
majority shareholders, holding 49.882% and 16.948% of the total shares, respectively.

Regarding the significant changes and development during the past 5 years, the Company has developed and
improved its organizational management system, as well as the internal processes, with focuses on customers and markets,
compliance with the government rules and regulations newly enforced such as the Building Control Act 1979. Though, the
Company has continuously attempted to reduce the cost of production and expenses; but the outcomes obtained were not
enough to overcome the negative factors from the global economic crisis and affecting the cost of production and expenses
such as the problem of Baht appreciation, increasing prices of raw materials, energy expenses, and adjustments of minimum
wages for twice in 2008.

At present, the Company has ceased its business operations of dyeing and finishing since August 16th, 2008, after
the Company has joint-ventured with Ten Cate Advanced Textiles BV of the Netherlands to establish a joint venture under the
name of Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd., to operate its business in the safety clothes dyeing industry, according
to the Resolution of the Board of Directors’ Meeting on June 24th, 2008.

In addition to its main business operations in textile manufacturing, distribution and services, the Company holds
shares in its associated companies, as follows:

® Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd., operating a business of dealer of cottons, synthetic fibres, and services (at the rate of 20.83%);

® Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd., operating a business of manufacturing and distribution of colour

fabric (at the rate of 49.35%);

The Company has received its profit share from investments in its associated companies, according to the equity
method, for less than 10% of the total incomes of the Company, which is therefore regarded as insignificant profit share.

According to the business operation policy, the Company and its associated companies have their separate and
independent management.

Revenues from Businesses Operation in Each Type of Affiliated Companies in Previous 3 Years Unit: 1,000 Baht

Company : Union textile 918.45 101.75 1,641.38 99.78 1.955.53 99.79
Manufacturing and industries
distribution of fabric,thread, PCL.
and services
Associated companies: Uni-Fibre CL 20.83 3.12 0.35 3.40 0.22 4.16 0.21
*Dealer of cottons,
synthetic fibre,
and services
Manufacturing and Ten Cate-Union 49.35 (18.96) 2.1)
distribution of colour fabric Protective
Fabrics Asia CL
Total m m m 902.61 m 100 m 1,644.78 m 100 m 1,959.69 m 100.00

Note: * Incomes shall include profit share from investments in the associated companies based on the equity method

Situation of Competitions in the Industry

Situation of competitions in the industry. Competitions in the textile industry remained severe in terms of pricing,
quality, and hand-over of products. In domestic markets, cheaper products were imported from countries with lower labour
costs; and in foreign markets, the Company had competitors such as China, India, Pakistan, Indonesia, etc.; moreover, EU
countries have determined the code of conduct on labour protection and social responsibility for sellers.

Competitors. The Company had approximately 10 local and overseas competitors.

Status and Potentials in the Competitions. The Company has still been reliable among its customers on the
quality and hand-over of products.
Trends of in the Industry and Competition

In the first half of the year 2009, the growth rate of the textile market tends to decrease steeply, resulting from the
global economic crisis and the customer’s delay of purchase orders because they still have a lot of stocks.
Main factors and influences which may affect the operations or financial status in the future

The Company’s customers postponed their purchase orders and limited the quantity of each purchase; and the
hand-over of products was urgent, resulting from the global economic crisis.

Product prices are crucial factors of competition.

EU markets have emphasized the standard of environmental-friendly products and labour protection standard and
social responsibility and have determined the code of conduct for sellers.
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Risk Factors
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Risk Factors

Risk from a decrease of purchase orders

The global severe economic crisis has caused the Company’s main customers, mostly purchasing grey fabrics as raw
materials, starting to postpone their purchase orders as well as the hand-over of products; and the risk from a decrease of
purchase orders may have negative impacts on the Company’s financial status, though, the Company has reduced its
production capacity and has adjusted the working time. To reduce potential risks, the Company has reduced its sales plans for
over 30% of the average gross sales per month and has closely followed up the purchase orders and hand-over of products in
each month to confirm the hand-over of products and to adjust the production plans.

Risk from financial liquidity

The Company had its risk from financial liquidity, particularly during the global economic crisis, which caused a
significant decrease in the Company’s incomes; therefore, the Company has paid its special attention to its cash flow
management.

Risk from provision of loans

The Company had its risk from provision of loans in connection with accounts receivable. The Management has
controlled this risk by determining the suitable policy and procedures for loan control; therefore, the Company expected not to
receive significant damage from its provision of loans.

Risk from exchange rates

The Company had its risk from exchange rates in connection with the purchase of raw materials and sale of products
in foreign currencies; whereas, the fluctuation of Thai currency may have both positive and negative impacts on the Company’s
incomes. To reduce risk from fluctuation of exchange rates, the Company has agreed to enter into contracts of currency futures
of which terms shall be mostly within one year; and has used other financial tools to reduce the impacts at the right time.

Risk from interest rates

The Company had its significant risk from interest rates in connection with its bank deposits, overdrafts, and short-
term loans; however, since the majority of the Company’s assets and financial liabilities had the adjustable interest rates
according to market rates, therefore, the Company’s risk from the interest rates was at the low level.
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Structure of Shareholding and Management
eBerfionu 10 Mousn a Sule yemzibougforuniean adufl 2 wwneu 2561

The list of 10 major shareholders of the Company:
(As of the last closing date of shareholders’ registration book on April 2nd, 2008)

1. nauUsEM wylau
Saha-Union Group
11 39 weflou $ia (@mzu) 29,929,200 49.882
Saha-Union Public Co.,Ltd.
12 1390 yuilougn wnssuame iR 3,668,280 6.114
Union Thread Industries Co.,Ltd.
1.3 U3t gieunAmensiia S1in 10,168,700 16.948
Union Business Management Co.,Ltd
2 SUIANT NTUNN AR (WD) 3,897,400 6.496
Bangkok Bank Public Co.,Ltd.
3 ey | awis 1,152,600 1921
Mr. Chan Sophonpanich
4 wefi"y wonslnya 1,046,900 1.745
Mr. Pisit Preukpaiboon
5 V3N nFamnLsEiunY e (o) 905,900 1510

Bangkok Insurance Public Co.,Ltd.

6 YN MYTUN 23U 936,900 1.562
Miss Nuchnapa Wongscharoensin

7 ety sundnulaa 736,300 1.227
Mr. Chanchai Thanarakkchock

8 wesnwIUse nis eIanuun 568,000 0.947
Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda

9 U3 lofivdn $1iin 561,600 0.936
Chotechalit Co.,Ltd.

10 I FORTIS PRIVATE BANKING SINGAPORE LTD I 478,000 I 0.797
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0 ouUMSTioRUUOLNSSUMSUSUN
Number of Director’s Shareholding

A3, 51U A335504

Dr. Amnuay Viravan 16,600 16,600
welsy A a

Mr. Prasong Sukhum - -
wnglam L 3faw

Mr. Opas Seriniyom - -
a3, Wi “uzL fus

Dr.Panas Simasathien - -
Uy AN UL

Mr.Sompop Amatayakul 10,000 10,000
WL 9 9 aanzan

Mrs. Sanagsawang Malikamas - -
WM MASNIUNS  ATnsseRan

Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana 27,010 27,010
Patdehifd] Fugayd

Mr. Vichai Chaitaneeyachat - -
U9FNA fa a3Aus

Mrs.Supung Tangsujaritpunt 69,020 69,020
a3, §ATa "D

Dr. Thitivat Suebsaeng - -
Fatithg DA

Mr. Manas Asavametha - -
WaRANNS Tohshuna

Mrs. Pimporn Chotirattanakul - -
w9 Madag niweniduna

Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul 45,000 45,000
WedwsUse s enImuum

Mr.Aksornprasit ~ Darakananda 568,000 568,000
UNIUNIAT AINLUN

Mrs. Chantorntree Darakananda 27,700 27,700
wy 33 Vinmay

Mr. Sutee Tappong - -
wien i “wlnin

Capt. Supich Sankhagowit - -
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Structure of Management

Structure of corporate management comprises 3 committees including the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee,
and the Remuneration and Nominating Committee

Scope of powers and responsibilities; and lists of committees

1. The Board of Directors

Scope of powers and responsibilities of the Board of Directors:

1. Appoint and remove the Company’s employees; with such powers, the Board of Directors may assign any
one or several director(s) of the Company to act on its behalf;
2. Authorize incentive pays and rewards for the Company’s staff or employees or any other person performing
a task for the Company, either on a regular or irregular basis;
3. Determine interim dividends for the Company’s shareholders;
4. Implement the objectives, regulations, and resolutions of the shareholder’s meeting in accordance with the
law;

Regarding the performance of works under its powers and responsibilities, the Board of Directors may appoint any
one or several director(s) or other person to act on its behalf;

The Board of Directors shall appoint any director as the President, with powers and responsibilities as the Board of
Director may think fit.

The Board of Directors may appoint the specific number of directors as it may think fit, as the executive board, with
powers and duties to supervise the Company'’s businesses as it may think fit; and among these directors, one director shall be
appointed as the executive chairman; and the President shall be an executive director by virtue of an office.

Two directors shall affix their signatures together and affix the Company’s seal. The Board of Directors shall have its
powers to determine the authorized director(s) of the Company.

List of the Board of Directors
As of December 31st, 2008, the Board of Di rectors consisted of 12 members, as follows:

1.1 Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana Chairman
1.2 Dr. Panas Simasathien Vice Chairman
1.3 Mr. Vichai Chaitaneeyachat Managing Director
1.4 Mr. Prasong Sukhum Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
1.5 Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Independent Director and Audit Committee;
Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee
1.6 Mrs. Sangsawang  Mallikamas Independent Director and Audit Committee;
Remuneration and Nominating Committee
1.7 Dr. Thitivat Suebsaeng Director
1.8 Mrs. Supung Tangsuijaritpunt Vice Managing Director
1.9 Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul Director
1.10 Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda Director
1.11 Mrs. Chantorntree  Darakananda Director
1.12 Capt. Supich Sankhagowit Assistant Managing Director
Mrs. Sirinun Sansanakom Secretary of the Company

Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda and Spouses

Mrs. Chantorntree Darakananda
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List of the Board Members Resigning During the Year:

Dr. Amnuay Viravan Director December 30th, 2008

Mr. Opas Seriniyom Independent Director and Audit Committee | March 18th, 2008
Remuneration and Nominating Committee

Mrs. Pimporn Chotirattanakul | Director March 18th, 2008

Mr. Manas Asavametha Assistant Managing Director August 19th, 2008

Mr. Sutee Tappong Assistant Managing Director April 1st, 2008

2. The Audit Committee
Scope of powers and responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
1.Review the Company’s internal control system to ensure that the system is appropriate and effective;
2.Review the Company’s compliance with applicable laws and regulations and prevent any conflicts of interests;
3.Invite the Management, managers/supervisors or employees of related companies to attend, explain or give
opinions in meetings or to submit related documents, as may be necessary;
4.The Management shall correct any defects found and shall accelerate the correction of such defects;
5.Follow up and evaluate the performances of work as the Audit Committee may deem significant;
6.Approve the appointment, removal, transfer, layoff; and consider the merits of the Manager of the Internal Audit
Office; and guarantee the independence of the internal auditor;
7.Select, review and propose the appointment of the external auditors, co-ordinate with them on preparation of
related financial reports and review the Company’s financial reports to ensure their accuracy and credibility;
8.Prepare the Audit Committee’s report to be signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee, published in the
Company’s annual report, and sent to the related parties;
9.Carry out other missions as assigned by the Board of Directors;
Criteria for Selection of Independent Directors:
1) Having the full qualifications according to the criteria of the Stock Exchange of Thailand;
2) Having experience and understanding in connection with the Company’s businesses;
3) Having visions and sufficient time for performance of duties;
List of the Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee of the Company shall have the full qualifications according to the criteria of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. The Audit Committee consisted of 3 independent directors, as follows:

Mr. Prasong Sukhum Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr. Sompop Amartayakul Audit Committee
Mrs. Saengsawang Mullikamas Audit Committee
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3. Remuneration and Nominating Committee
Scope of powers and responsibilities of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee:
1. Determine guidelines for nomination of directors;
2. Select and nominate the qualified individuals to be approved by the Board of Directors;
3. Consider the procedures of determination of remuneration for directors;
4. Determine the amount of remunerations for directors to be proposed to the meeting of the Board of Directors for
approval;
List of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee:
The Company has appointed directors with relevant experience and qualifications as members of the Remuneration
and Nominating Committee, consisting of 3 directors (an independent director acting as the Chairman) as follows:

Mr. Sompop Amartayakul Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee
Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana Remuneration and Nominating Committee
Mrs. Saengsawang Mullikamas Remuneration and Nominating Committee

Nomination of Directors and the Management:

e Method of selection and appointment of directors through the Nominating Committee. The Remuneration and
Nominating Committee shall select the qualified persons and propose them to the Board of Directors’ meeting for consideration
and appointment;

e The Company’s directors shall be elected in the Shareholders’ Meeting, thus, in accordance with the criteria and
procedures, as follows:

1. One shareholder shall have one vote per one share;

2. In the election of directors, one or several directors may be elected at one time, according to the number of
directors to be elected in that occasion, as the shareholders’ meeting may deem expedient; provided that, in each passing of
resolution, shareholders must cast their total votes as specified in Clause 1; and the votes may not be divided to any person or
a group of persons;

3. Directors shall be elected by the majority votes; in case of equal votes, the chairman of the meeting shall have a
casting vote;

In each AGM, one-third of directors must be released from office. In case, the number of directors cannot be divided
into three portions, the most approximate number to one-third of the directors shall be released from office.

Directors to be released from office in the first year and in the second year after the Company’s registration shall be
selected by drawing lots; meanwhile, in the following years, directors who have longest been in office will be released from
office. Retiring directors may be reelected.

Apart from the retirement by rotation, a director may be released from office in cases of:

(1) Death;

(2) Resignation;

(8) Disqualification or having any forbidden characteristics according to the law;

(4) The shareholders’ meeting has passed its resolution with at least three-fourth of the total shareholders attending
the meeting and having the voting rights, and holding at least one half of the total shares held by shareholders
attending the meeting and having the voting rights;

(5) The court has given an order relating to the release from office of such director;
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List of the Management:

1.Mr. Vichai Chaitaneeyachat Managing Director

2.Mrs. Supung Tangsujaritpunt Vice Managing Director

3.Capt. Supich Sankhagowit Assistant Managing Director

4.Mr. Wuth Wuthtipong Personnel Manager

5.Mr. Somboon Chewpreecha Administration Manager

6.Miss Napaporn  Kreingkraiwanich Sales and Production Coordination Manager
7.Mr. Weeratham  Poochinya Sales Manager

8.Mrs. Yupha Bunchueydee Finance Manager

9.Miss Prayoon Sripraram m Accounting Manager

Benefits and Remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Management in 2008

Remuneration in terms of meeting allowances of the Board of Directors

1. Dr. Amnuay Viravan

2. Mr. Prasong Sukhum 240,000
3. Mr. Opas Seriniyom 60,000
4. Dr. Panas Simasathien

5. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul 240,000
6. Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana

7. Mr. Vichai Chaitaneeyachat

8. Mrs. Saengsawang Mullikamas 180,000
9. Mrs. Supung Tangsujaritpunt

10.Dr. Thitivat Suebsaeng

11.Mr. Manas Asavametha

12.Mrs. Pimporn Chotirattanakul

13.Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul

14.Mr. Aksornprasit ~ Darakananda

15.Mrs. Chantorntree Darakananda

16.Mr. Sutee

Tappong

17.Capt. Supich

Sankhagowit

Monetary Remunerations

1. Remunerations for the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee, in terms of meeting allowances, totally 3 persons, were amounted to 0.72 million Baht;
2. Total remunerations of the Company’s Management, totally 9 persons, divided into salaries and bonus, were amounted
to 13.12 million Baht;
Non-Monetary Remunerations
-None
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Corporate Governance

1. Policy on the corporate governance

The Board of Directors has given the importance to the corporate governance to create confidence and credibility to
shareholders, investors, stakeholders, and all related parties; and has expressed that the Company has its effective,
transparent, and accountable management system.

2. Rights of Shareholders

The Board of Directors has provided convenience and equal treatment to all shareholders. The Ordinary Shareholder’s
Meeting of 2006 was convened at the conference room of the Head Office Building of Saha-Union Public Company Limited;
and the Company has submitted invitation for shareholder’s meeting, together with supplementary data according to the
meeting agenda to shareholders for at least 7 working days in advance; whereas, in each session of the meeting, the opinions
of the Board of Directors were given; and the minutes of the meeting were fully and correctly prepared so that the shareholders
would be able to check its correctness; at the same time, in case, any shareholder is unable to attend the meeting, such
shareholder may execute a proxy for any person (regardless of the management or director of the Company) to attend the
meeting on its behalf; whereas, the voting right under the meeting agenda shall be in accordance with the shareholder’s
intention.

3. Rights of Stakeholders

The Company has given the importance to the rights of all groups of stakeholders, either inside stakeholders such as
employees and the management, or outside stakeholder such as business partners, competitors, creditors, or other related
organizations. The Company has complied with its promises or agreements with honesty and integrity; and has complied with
the law and statues relating to the environment, etc., so that rights of these stakeholders shall be well protected.

4. Shareholders’ Meeting

In the Annual Ordinary Shareholder’s Meeting No.15 convened on April 24th, 2008, there were 9 directors attending
the meeting, including the audit director; whereas, the chairman of the meeting has given the equal rights and opportunities for
shareholders to audit the Company’s operations, to inquire and express their opinions and recommendations; and significant
inquiries and comments have been recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

Regarding the meeting session on directors and powers of directors, and consideration of remuneration of directors,
the Company has already disclosed the data in the agenda; and shareholders shall cast their votes according to the method
and the sessions prescribed; and the Chairman has notified the shareholders of the method of vote counting before the casting
of votes.

5. Leadership and Visions of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall participate in the determination of objectives, strategies, goals, and policies on business
operations of the Company; and shall consider and approve the business plans and budgets of the Company; and shall follow
up the performances to be in accordance with the prescribed objectives and policies; and shall carefully perform their duties
with skill and honesty.

6. Conflicts of Interests

The Board of Directors shall carefully prevent any conflicts of interests. Normally, related transactions of the Company
shall be the transactions, which have usually occurred; and there was no unusual transactions; and terms of pricing or
procedures of transactions consideration shall be in accordance with the system similar to the transactions made with the
outsiders; provided that the Company has disclosed the details and reasons of related transactions in the Notes to Financial
Statements.

7. Business Ethics

The Company has its policy to disclose the business operations, practices of directors and employees, missions to
customers, business partners, and the society; whereas, all related parties are well informed and have adhered to them as
guidelines for performance of duties according to the Company’s missions, with honesty and fairness. The Company has
regularly followed up the operations and related matters to be in accordance with the above-said policy of business ethics and
the provisions of disciplinary actions.
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8. Balance of Power of Non-Executive Directors
As of December 31st, 2008, the Board of Directors consisted of 12 members, including:

Executive directors 3 persons;
Non-executive directors 6 persons;
Independent director and audit director 3 persons

(equal to 25% of the whole committee);

9. Aggregation and Separation of Positions

The structure of management has shown the structure and scope of powers and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors and subcommittees, as well as the nomination process and term in office of the directors.

o The Chairman shall not be the same person as the President;

e The secretary of the Company shall give advice on legal matters and regulations;

e The majority of subcommittee shall be independent directors; and the Chairman of the subcommittee shall be an
independent director;

10. Remunerations for Directors and the Management

Regarding the remunerations for directors, the Company has determined its clear policy on remunerations for
directors; remunerations shall be paid to directors of the Company as meeting allowances; provided that the remunerations
have already been approved by the ordinary shareholder’s meeting.

Remunerations for the management shall be in accordance with the principles and policies as prescribed by the Board
of Directors, which are in connection with the operating result of the Company and with the performance of each member of the
management.

Details of remunerations for directors and the management are specified on Page 26

11. Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Board of Directors has prescribed the monthly meeting schedule for the whole year in advance; and in each
monthly meeting, the secretary of the Company shall send invitation for the meeting, together with the meeting agenda and the
meeting documents for 7 days in advance so that the Board of Directors shall have enough time to study the documents before
the meeting.

In 2008, the Board of Directors has convened 12 ordinary meetings of the Board of Directors (no extraordinary
meeting was convened); and each of the ordinary meetings lasted for at least 2 hours; record of meeting attendances of
each director was as follows:

Board of Directors’ Meeting

Name Term in Office No. of Meeting
Attendances
1. Dr. Amnuay Viravan Until December 30th, 2008 0/12
2. Dr. Panas Simasathien 8/12
3. Mr. Prasong Sukhum 2/12
4. Mr. Opas Seriniyom Until March 18th, 2008 3/3
5. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul 10/12
6. Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana 12/12
7. Mrs. Supung Tangsuijaritpunt 12/12
8. Mr. Vichai Chaitaneeyachat 12/12
9. Mrs. Pimporn Chotirattanakul Until March 18th, 2008 3/3
10.Mr. Manas Asavametha Until August 19th, 2008 8/8
11.Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul 12/12
12.Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda 10/12
13.Mrs. Chantorntree  Darakananda 5/12
14.Mrs. Saengsawang Mullikamas Since March 18th, 2008 9/9
15.Dr. Thitivat Suebsaeng Since March 18th, 2008 9/9
16.Mr. Sutee Tappong Until April 1st, 2008 3/3
17.Capt. Supich Sankhagowit 11/12
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12. Subcommittees

The Audit Committee shall be provided according to Requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand; and the Board
of Directors has appointed the Remuneration and Nominating Committee, presided by Mr. Sompop Amartayakul, an
independent director.

13. Internal Control System and Internal Audit

The Company has established the office of internal audit, a unit which shall report directly to the President and shall
report the audit result to the Audit Committee for independence in its audit function.

The Office of Internal Audit shall be obliged to audit the financial and operational activities of units and internal
processes to ensure that the main operations and significant financial activities of the Company have been effectively carried out
in accordance with the prescribed guidelines.

14. Report on the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities to the Financial Statements
Report on the Board of Directors’ responsibilities to the financial statements appeared on page 43

15. Relationship with Investors

Investors and interested persons in general may search the Company’s information from the Company’s website at
http://www.sahaunion.co.th/ut or contact the Accounting and Finance Division at Telephone No. 02-3231085-93 Ext.1113.

Policy on Internal Information Control

The Company had its overall rules and regulations covering the use of internal information, forbidding the exercise of
its powers and duties or reference of powers and duties of other people for its own benefits or provision of assistances to other
people in an illegal manner; and must perform the work with honesty. The Company has determined the degrees of disciplinary
actions in case of breach of the above-said disciplines.

Internal Control

The Board of Directors have assigned the Audit Committee to consider the adequacy and suitability of the internal
control system; whereas, the office of internal audit shall be obliged to audit the internal control on management and operations;
and the certified auditor shall audit the financial statements of the Company according to the generally accepted standard of
accounting and shall evaluate the accounting system and internal control system.

In 2008, the Audit Committee has reviewed the suitability and effectiveness of the internal control system in coopera-
tion with the management and the internal auditor; and has given some useful recommendations on the business management;
and has reported to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis; moreover, the certified auditor of the Ernst & Young Office Co.,
Ltd., has given the opinions that no significant errors was found relating to the internal control system.

In the Board of Directors’ Meeting No.3/2009 convened on March 17th, 2009, and participated by the Audit
Committee, the Board of Directors have evaluated the adequacy of the internal control system within the year 2008, as per the
evaluation form prepared by the Securities and Exchange Commission, covering 5 main components of the internal control
system; the Board of Directors has agreed that the Company had an adequate internal control system.

Dividend Payment Policy

The Company had its policy to pay dividends and to provide a proper rate of return on investment to shareholders;
thus, subject to the operating result of the business and based on the profits according to the cost method of accounting.
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Related Parties Transactions
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Characteristics of Related Transactions in the Past

The Company had significant business transactions with its parent company and with the related companies; and the
majority of the said business transactions were involved with the sale of products and purchase of raw materials in accordance
with the market condition at that time; whereas, the Company has disclosed the information of significant business transactions
in the notes to financial statements according to the accounting standard and Regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Necessity and Reasonableness of the Related Transactions
The group companies had their policy to establish a unit to supply raw materials to companies within the group in
order to gain more bargaining power on pricing and quantity, thus, for the highest benefits of the Company.

Measures or Processes of Related Transactions Approval

The related transactions shall be in accordance with the normal business practice for outsiders, with the process of
transactions approval according to the normal commercial system in general, relating to the reception and settlement of
payments, determination of due dates for each transaction, and supervision of the operations as prescribed.

Policy or Trends of the Related Transactions

The necessity and reasonableness of such transactions (which are often the normal commercial transactions in
general), either inter-trading of products or mutual borrowing, and mutual prices and returns shall be in accordance with the
market prices; or in case of interest calculation, the interest rates shall be equal to the interest rates in the financial market at a
particular period of time when such transaction has occurred; and the rates of returns received shall be equal to the market
rates.

33



AOBUNUIAMSIINS HHADNUMSIDUIAWAMSCITUDU

MwsamvesHam Ay

amsnfunue3sin luseud 2651 masumsRulenziams u aeils w5 29.78 awun Mlswiadu 12.86 auum Weifisy
Aul 2560 Fefiarls 5 16.92 auum WIDWMIRUTAL PeRuasueaAs ey U AwWaTIAYY 15 17.98 AULM HALIABUATARAN
34.36 anupm Wiaifieudy 9 2650 Fefinarls vi5 16.38 awum  wswAnINaTslaAMIIBLazIIMIanas Fadunansenuanms
uwpedupeneguusslugsfia ™ malan safemidngaiswanaraeatsd 2561 Fadutadedl wansemunemImuuATAINY kezU3uaIMITe
“um UsznaufiuuiEnm lemgamssnidugsfialy Junszuiumsventeudauniuil 16 ~wna 2551

msawezeyans lWiazifunmwsiuwssamsmilunuae3snT sasumsfiuiin. auduamumuds ulay

sulaanmssnsuazu3nig

U3sne fselaannissnsuaz3ms 91845 awum anad 622.93 awuw Andusesar 40.4 dewisndAull 2560 Uszasumme
elandn

® ANMIINAU anas 19644 auum Anidusesas 257

® MmN anas 381.70 auum Andusasaz 54.2 iiesanauing levganissifiugsialy unszuIumsvangaNnaun
Tufl 16 “emAu 2551

o anmMsUIMIsUasiune waziuansiangau anas 44.79 muum Anlusesas 60.4

seladu

U3 Seladu 59 91.06 aMuDm anad 32.62 auuw Wewisudy 1 2650 Feiineladusin 123.68 auum anasdnidusasas
26.4 U3noummy

° iﬂﬂlﬁaﬁﬂﬂﬁmmﬂwfmqﬁu anaY 14.80 anuum illesannuFenT aaUinamsnanaufieln annassiULFINAINIIY

o Mlsmnmsimneiniasins uazgUnsal anas 39.42 auum

o rlsanmsd g “unindluuauisnsn Windy 3672 aww idesnnlotuil 24 fquisy 2651 MssaueazsIIMIYDY
Ui lafudsmamuluuiom muae-gideulusmefimuuoiaeids Siia (TCUA) Tasu3mlals uningune wiliienfunszuiumaenges
thlusmamu wazu3sne Sugilsanmsdmng uninddsnanimnuimsm u~a unsfiovulu TCUA Aesaway 49.35

o Mlsansasuanilasu anas 8.96 anuum

o SuunaiuannRuawUszHLIIBY anas 0.65 AU

e u 9 anas 551 auum

aunuuazalsanslumsrsuazuins

Tufl 2561 U3 Siaunuansuazy3ns 847.36 auLM anas 562.28 aum AnuTuseya 39.9 Walisudy 1 2650 Feinunuansuas
13M5 1,409.64 awum fiadaunuaneuazuinsiianas earassiunelaanmIneiianas

mlzanslumsznsuazyu3ms

3 fenlzanglunsmneuazims 121.66 Muum anas 82.82 awum Aausasas 40.5 Walisuiud 2560 Fefimlzanslumsne
WAz 20448 awum WunaxNaNMITIBanas slralzaAsaiUmMszsanas Wy mizanieaiums seen

Anlgansdy

3 Tatufinenlzangdu 2097 awuw Wuanifemssesmvesiuamulunu iy Selull 2550 Tufisnmadsnan

fils

Tufl 2551 U3 fimlsnaualganenemsRu 19.51 awDn anad 31.43 auwm Anudusesas 61.7 Waifisuiuld 2650 Fefifnls
ApUAITANIMIMNTIRY 50.94 anuum Ui Simlzaneensidu Selaun aenduans msssudisusuians Tull 2651 d1uau 21.65 A
wazluil 2560 S1uau 37.96 auL M anas 16.31 s AnuTusesaz 43.0 uenannd luf 2651 3w latufin untenasanuanduasmuly
U3Hm3an Uiy 16.84 anuunm Beluf 2550 tufinudu uutssamlsannRuamuluuisnsy suiu 3.40 anupwm

Wl 9 2561 U38m Tuanemu 915 17.98 auunm NaUsznaumMsanas 34.36 auum iewieuiu 1 2650 Fefinarinls n5 16.38

ANUDIN

SaranauunuAaFouY
8991 uananu nieoelasnvasd 2561AnTusesas 1.8 iawisuAuld 2650 Feiidnan wrnls ndreelaviu Andusesas 1.0
SamnanauununpRoyuil 2551 wnAvsauas -2.7 Tusaudil 2650 whivsaas 2.4
FIUSANTRY
Wmsiwasundasuznsduaeewdsmm lull 2561

34



“uning

a Fuil 31 SwanAu 2551 U3 "undndsau 1,162,556 auunm anae 261.36 anuum Anusosaz 184 dieisudu ull 2560
Fef"uningsin 142391 awum  JUmMIWasuLas 132 Aaei

"7 uee uning a “uil 2561 7 Waysznaumy “uniwemyuBsusesas 345 Ruawmusesas 23.9 Ay enAs uazgUnsalseYas
414 uaz undngdy 4 sesar 02 WaiuAy “a ul 2550 1emsfliduuutas éyde

o “unindnyusuanas 256,54 auum dainannganiimsmanas 123.31 auUm waz uAALWED 115 anas 109.54 aNuLm
Fuflunananyesnyanad wazanmdsnsnanaaiioln sanapsiuganNLTiana

o Suawmuluy3ime Wi 132,36 auum e lefimsamuluuismsn W3sm muae-gdsulusmeiiuiuniaeids
d1in) uRuamUszIZEEY anae 115 24.87 auum Reanu3En latufinaifiensresamesiuasulum 11y seewith gdsulimesiia
i

o iifiu 915 uazaunsal anas 113.98 awum esannuFmn lavh undndne wllamuluydsnioy

AAATNTBY " UNTNE

au Jufl 31 Sunmw 2651 ganiinsaiivanaends 11528 auunm AaTusasas 9.9 ¥o9 uningsm gauiimaan wlng) Wusaei
Falsifierhnungiss uenanimsze“um seen U3 AmualvgnAvnnsdaasnoseeriinsiniaums ey sgalsAay U3Enm lagins
Avuandninamimsseiient « “paz_alasd

o anwilfifizann1etraziiu 90 Tu Rasanseaileni] « “baz qIppas 50 vasuaARTANKED

Sl >

o ynwilfiflvanAednsziAu 180 Fu fiansanaaiilend < “az wsevaz 75 vpsweaniinunds

o gniliifivanAetsiiu 365 fu Ansandsanidlend ¢ “waz qIosaz 100 vesueaniAmED

anmdninamanantsnea useudiad 2651 uism lifienwddunssisanifiond < ez washivnngivg afetuusesnsls

usnATiLAEm ffiansanama nsavesganipialunstszniinn “uidiou Wedausnnqugnain < ulasedulss umsaies
wnun“wide uazen 3veyaiduaqiiu

“umAewan & Sufl 31 SuanAu 2651 Tiwea umAunde N5 24509 awum Andusenaz 211 Tee uUNNETIN anas 109.54
awuw Wawfieuiy T 2650 FefisenunAunia N5 354.63 AU “UAANNKAD UTzABUMY TUAALMEDTIMNY 28648 auLM Tms
sapniilamsanyarn umeawaEe ansAmuasinyam visfiazlad 9.19 awunm fs Eee A N A 32.20 auum wutadedi
v3m thynlsfiasanyszavlumssenifionsanyam™unnamds Taun 32821 AsAN9UR " UMANWED LAz ANYDS UAUAZ/WIDANNA

fuvee~um penalsfimunivn Ussiiuduszaznduiunilamsanyam umaundadnan fanumn: o uazidutaqiu

unasiiinasduny

TA3e TWRUNUIBNUFI a1 Sufl 31 Sunnew 2551 U3Se T8 qunii~une uvesyfenudty Woifisudud 2550 nandAelud
2551 U3+ §1 0 unil~uee uvps@ienumndy 076 ae 1 Tupaiiid 2550 8 “n qunii~une upesFouwiAy 106 ae 1 Wesanauisnm

2
v a &

TnanUsinums “datagiu uaziefi~genas Tauddlalsanunensany umeasndsesnly shindiaou wnsalumsanefuni upduszes “u

l

P

wavanNudnAuTYEas

wil~y

U3 vl usan 50144 auun uwaunil " unyuidsy 392.08 awuwm i ulivyuiisy 109.36 auum

wﬁ"umguﬁsu Usznpume

o SuniurBuazidugsze: U 10321 awwm Tesfidaeenidy semisesaz 537 - 7.00 aeil wazUsAaAMIzAUsEAY
agalsfmanivm lalnsiuresunmsnaglidmneansleundonanszyniilus “srsuninguasuism mufiseyly “yanefu udsuuas
TnsueuBugaudunis parnsumsnou

o wiinn3An 109.27 aMuumn WuawidmsenfiamsfiAesesiu 94.38 a1uum lwminsaAansilifeiesiu 14.89 auumn
Fefimathazauszezandimnue

. L’Euﬁﬁm:ﬂz “annfamsfifgesiy 160.00 auum Anrenidslnsdnusnneenidsvessinmsmdss

o il umuiudu 19.60 s wauenlsaisaeany 1674 awun uazdus 3.86 a1unm

uvasfiony

au 31 SunAu 2651 U3HNY Tyarwes Muvesyfiavy 661.11 AWM anad 31.77 awuuwm Wewfisuiul 2560 Fefiyarves e
WA 692.88 anuum SwuiiwAsuwaswniu 2 wAe uwsranenuisibiRnduaiainnswasuulasyam Ruamu 13.79 Muumn
waz il swaranu ¢ usdliladn 53 17.98 awum

35



MNAADY

awnsze @y A w3l u aduf 31 Sunneu 2561 U3 T1RU auazsiemsiBuEN@Y A 2621 awum Wiy 1071 auum
WloWisuiud 2660 Bewnan

1. {u a3uanianssusfiuau 224,67 auum

2. Nu Aannnannsasu 29.48 Ay

3. o yalsllufanssudam i@y 243.44 awun

Tu wesianssusifiuanu v39m filsanamsddununsunsidsuudaddu uning wazni~uiiiuanu 65.34 auDm M3
wasuuadlu uning uazmi~u 18294 auum  wendn AeTums umeundnanas Fenduinlusunsze Sy e Ty uvesgaviinsen
Fughsraurnueszaz o uazanstszninsmeuidaulaniemsen U aweenidy uaraemBRulevin a Ay 23.61 auum

Tu uzesianssuamu viwnlalsRulunsdeiinu snmsuazgUnsal Wiadu 344 awum Ul annms SwineiAIesdnTuas
aunTal 30.37 auum FuRuTUNANRUAMUIEEZEN8Y 2,56 auLN

Tu uzesianssudamFu vishe laansAutudniuiafuazfugszes Ban anunsi@u 10344 auum uazthseAulundy
szaz “uanfamsfliigweeii 140.00 anuum

NBNBaMY

Tufl 2651 V38" Tpangawulumste fiau 81ms uazgUnsal 402 auum

ARBUUNUDDNY DU

1. AABLUNUAINANT auligyd (audit fee)

i euBveitn Ae wnpuseR Wumw WAty Tygnialy wisue MANaal Weetiusna “wia UM Wiy
AU 0 uoum 54 Sim Lﬂué aulufves3tnyszand 2551 uazrnuamnauwnunns autaddas 47,000 U M BUNUIUNNTRUITING
MaveswInyn 4 lasin Wuidu 360,000 D sauuduan eutiaydiie u 830,000 umaedl U3 lifimsanen suta@luiuy suradvie
yana vieRamsfiifeTesiuy suliyd way Wihau eualily vl “wia

2. mw3an5du(non- audit fee)

U3 lifim g aeUWUIaN UL AU (Non Audit Fee) upnantnsaulufinuuimsduiibivai Safinesansluddalylniy
W eutyd vie hnufna1En

36



Explanation and Analysis of
Financial Status and the Operating Result

Overview of the Operating Result

The operating result of the Company in 2008, based on the financial statements of its particular business, has
revealed the net profit of 29.78 million Baht, increased by 12.86 million Baht, when compared to the net profit of 16.92 million
Baht in 2007. Financial statements based on the equity method have revealed the net loss of 17.98 million Baht; and the
operating result decreased by 34.36 million Baht, when compared to those in 2007, which had the net profit of 16.38 million
Baht mainly resulting from a decrease of incomes from sales and services and effects from severe competitions in the global
textile business, and the economic crisis during the year-end of 2008, which were factors affecting the determination of sale
prices and the quantity of sale of products; moreover, the Company has ceased its business operation in the dyeing process as
from August 16th, 2008.

The following information shall disclose the overview of the operating result of the Company under the financial
statements of investments based on the equity method.

Incomes from Sales and Services

The Company had its incomes from sales and services, totally 918.45 million Baht, decreased by 622.93 million Baht
or 40.4% when compared to those of 2007. The Company’s main incomes were from:

e Sale of grey fabrics (decreased by 196.44 milion Baht or 25.7%);

e Sale of colour fabrics (decreased by 381.70 million Baht or 54.2%; because the Company has ceased its business
operation in the dyeing process as from August 16th, 2008)

e Yarn spinning and dyeing services (decreased by 44.79 million Baht or 60.4%);

Other Incomes

The Company had other incomes of totally 91.06 million Baht, decreased by 32.62 million Baht or 26.4%, when
compared to other incomes of totally 123.68 million Baht in 2007, including:

e Incomes from the sale of remnants of raw materials, decreased by 14.80 million Baht because the Company
reduced the volume of production to be in line with the volume of sale;

e Incomes from the sale of machinery and equipment, decreased by 39.42 million Baht;

e Incomes from the sales of assets to associated companies, increased by 36.72 million Baht because on June 24th,
2008, the Board of Directors’ Meeting has passed its resolution to joint venture with Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co.,
Ltd. (TCUA); whereas, the Company has used some parts of the assets in connection with the dyeing process for such joint
venture; and the Company has recognized the incomes from the sale of such assets to the associated companies at the
proportion of shareholding of 49.35% in TCUA;

e Incomes from currency exchange rates, decreased by 8.96 million Baht;

e Dividend received from other long-term investments, decreased by 0.65 million Baht;

e Others, decreased by 5.51 million Baht;

Costs and Expenses of Sales and Services

In 2008, the Company had the cost of sales and services, totally 847.36 million Baht, decreased by 562.28 million
Baht, or decreased by 39.9% when compared to the cost of sales and services of 1,409.64 million Baht in 2007; provided that
the decreased cost of sales and services was in line with the decreased incomes from sales.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

The Company had its selling and administrative expenses of totally 121.66 million Baht, decreased by 82.82 million
Baht, or decreased by 40.5% when compared to the selling and administrative expenses of 204.48 million Baht in 2007,
resulting from a decrease in the volume of sale and resulting in a decrease in the selling expenses such as export expenses.

Other Expenses

The Company has recorded its other expenses of totally 20.97 million Baht as allowances for impairment of invest-
ments in ordinary shares; whereas, no such particulars were recorded in 2007.

Profits

In 2008, the Company had its profits before financial expenses of totally 19.51 million Baht, decreased by 31.43
million Baht, or decreased by 61.7% when compared to the profits before financial expenses of totally 50.94 million Baht in
2007. In 2008, the Company’s financial expenses including interest expense, bank fees, were totally 21.65 million Baht,
decreased by 16.31 million Baht or decreased by 43.0% when compared to 37.96 million Baht in 2007; moreover,

in 2008, the Company has recorded the share of loss from investments in its associated companies, amounted to
15.84 million Baht; whereas, in 2007, the Company has recorded its profit share from investments in its associated companies,
amounted to 3.40 million Baht.
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In summary, in 2008, the Company had its net losses of 17.98 million Baht; and the operating result has decreased by
34.36 million Baht, when compared to its net profit of 16.38 million Baht in 2007.

Rate of Returns on Shareholder’s Equity

The percentage of net loss to gross income in 2008 was 1.8%, when compared to the percentage of net profit to
gross income of 1.0% in 2007.

In 2008, the rate of returns on shareholder’s equity was -2.7%; meanwhile, in 2007, the rate of returns on shareholder’s
equity was 2.4%.

Financial Status

Summary on changes in the Company’s financial status in 2008:

Assets

As of December 31st, 2008, the Company had its total assets of 1,162.55 million Baht, decreased by 261.36 million
Baht, or decreased by 18.4% when compared to its total assets of 1,423.91 million Baht at the year-end of 2007. Significant
changes are summarized, as follows:

As of December 31st, 2008, significant proportions of assets consisted of current assets 34.5%, investments 23.9%,
land, building, and equipment 41.4%, and other assets 0.2%; when compared to the proportions thereof in 2007, significant
particulars of changes included:

e Current assets decreased by 256.54 million Baht because the accounts receivable of the Company decreased by
123.31 million Baht; and the inventory decreased by 109.54 million Baht, resulting from a decrease in the gross sales; and the
production capacity has decreased to be in line with the decrease of the gross sales;

e Investments in the associated companies increased by 132.35 million Baht because the Company had its invest-
ment in the associated companies (Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd.); meanwhile, other long-term investments
decreased by 24.87 million Baht because the Company recorded the allowance for impairment of investments in ordinary
shares of Union Business Management Co., Ltd.;

e Land, building, and equipment decreased by 113.98 million Baht because the Company has invested some parts
of the assets in its associated companies;

Quality of Assets

As of December 31st, 2008, the Company’s accounts receivable were totally 115.28 million Baht or equal to 9.9% of
the total assets; the majority of the accounts receivable has not yet been due; moreover, regarding its sale of export products,
the Company required its customers to open letters of credit before the hand-over; however, the Company has prescribed the
criteria for fixing the allowance for doubtful debts, as follows:

e Regarding accounts with outstanding balance for exceeding 90 days, the Company shall fix the allowance for
doubtful debts at 50% of the balance of debt payments;

o Regarding accounts with outstanding balance for exceeding 180 days, the Company shall fix the allowance for
doubtful debts at 75% of the balance of debt payments;

e Regarding accounts with outstanding balance for exceeding 365 days, the Company shall fix the allowance for
doubtful debts at 100% of the balance of debt payments;

According to the above-mentioned criteria, within the financial year of 2008, the Company needed not to fix the
allowance for doubtful debts and it appeared that there was no bad debt.

Moreover, the Company has considered the repayment ability of individual debtor at the end of each month in order to
screen the doubtful debtors based on the experience of the credit department and the updated information.

As of December 31st, 2008, the Company’s net inventory was amounted to 245.09 million Baht or equal to 21.1% of
the total assets, decreased by 109.54 million Baht when compared to the net inventory of 354.63 million Baht in 2007. The
Company’s inventory consisted of the inventory at cost price amounted to 286.48 million Baht; and the Company has fixed the
allowance for diminution in value of the inventory and reduced the cost price to the net realizable value of 9.19 million Baht and
fixed the reserve of obsolete goods of 32.20 million Baht; the Company has considered factors relating to the fixing of the
allowance for diminution in value of the inventory including the outstanding period of inventory and the condition and/or
obsoleteness of goods; however, the Company has occasionally evaluated that the quantity of allowance for diminution in value
of the said inventory was suitable and updated.

Source of Funds

Regarding the Company’s structure of funds, as of December 31st, 2008, the Company had a debt-to-equity ratio of
0.76:1, which was better than the debt-to-equity ratio of 1.06:1 in 2007 because the Company has reduced its purchase orders
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of raw materials and chemical dyes and has tried to sell its stocks; as a result, the Company had the ability to repay short-term
loans and to reduce the amount of overdrafts.

Liabilities

The Company had the total liabilities of 501.44 million Baht, divided into current liabilities amounted to 392.08 million
Baht and non-current liabilities amounted to 109.36 million Baht.

Current liabilities included:

e Overdrafts and short-term loans amounted to 103.21 million Baht, with the interest rates of 5.37-7.00% p.a.) and
without burden of guarantee; however, the Company has promised, to the bank, not to dispose, transfer, or incur obligations in
the real property of the Company as specified in the credit limit contract unless receiving a prior written consent from the bank;

e Accounts payable amounted to 109.27 million Baht consisted of account receivable of the related businesses
amounted to 94.38 million Baht; accounts receivable of the non-related businesses amounted to 14.89 million Baht, which
have been paid within the time limit;

e Short-term loans from the related businesses amounted to 160.00 million Baht, with the reference interest rates of
commercial banks;

e Other current liabilities amounted to 19.60 million Baht, divided into accrued expenses amounted to 15.74 million
Baht and other expenses amounted to 3.86 million Baht;

Shareholder’s Equity

As of December 31st, 2008, the Company had the value of shareholder’s equity amounted to 661.11 million Baht,
decreased by 31.77 million Baht when compared to the value of shareholder’s equity amounted to 692.88 million Baht in 2007.
The changing amount was divided into 2 parts including the unrealized loss from changes in value of investments amounted to
13.79 million Baht; and the unrealized deficit in value of investments amounted to 17.98 million Baht.

Liquidity

Cash flow statement for the year ended on December 31st, 2008. The Company had its cash and cash equivalent
amounted to 26.21 million Baht, increased by 10.71 million Baht when compared to those in 2007, including:

1. Cash from the operating activities amounted to 224.67 million Baht;

2. Cash from investment activities amounted to 29.48 million Baht;

3. Net cash spent in the financing activities amounted to 243.44 million Baht;

Regarding the operating activities, the Company had its profits from operations before the changes in operating
assets and liabilities amounted to 65.34 million Baht; particulars of changes in assets and liabilities amounted to 182.94 million
Baht; the main reason was a decrease in the particulars of inventory, which was converted to cash flow in terms of accounts
receivable to receive the payments within the time limit and to settle the commercial debt payment according to the commercial
terms; the Company has paid the interest and the withholding tax amounted to 23.61 million Baht.

Regarding the investment activities, the Company has spent 3.44 million Baht additionally to purchase land, building,
and equipment and has received cash from the sale of machinery and equipment amounted to 30.37 million Baht; and has
received the dividend from other long-term investments amounted to 2.55 million Baht.

Regarding the financing activities, the Company has repaid the overdrafts and short-term loans from financial
institutions amounted to 103.44 million Baht and has repaid the short-term loans from related businesses amounted to 140.00
million Baht.

Capital Expenditure

In 2008, the Company had its capital expenditure relating to the purchase of land, building, and equipment amounted
to 4.02 million Baht.

The Auditor’s Remuneration

1. Audit Fee

The Company’s auditor in 2008 was Mr. Narong Pantawong or Mr. Suphachai Panyawattano or Miss Siraporn
Eur-Anankul of the Ernst & Young Co., Ltd. The Company has determined the auditor’s remuneration of 47,000 Baht per year;
and the interim financial statement review fees for 4 quarters, totally 360,000 Baht; and the total audit fees of 830,000 Baht per
year. The Company has not paid the audit fees to the auditor or person or business in connection with the auditor and the audit
office of the auditor.

2. Non-Audit Fee

The Company has not paid any non-audit fee except the above-said audit fee; and there was no unfinished non-audit,
which must be paid to the auditor or the said audit office in the next year.
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Report of the Audit Committee

To Shareholders:

In 2008, the Audit Committee, consisting of 3 independent directors, including Mr. Prasong Sukhum, the
Chairman; and Mr. Sompop Amartayakul and Mrs. Saengsawang Mullikamas, directors, has convened 5 meetings, in total,
with the auditor, the internal auditor, and the management, of which audit activities were summarized, as follows:

1. Review the financial reports together with the auditor, the Accounting Manager, and the management;
review the Company’s reports and financial statements, related transactions of the related companies,
transactions which may cause conflicts of interests, and adequacy of the disclosure of information
according to the generally accepted standard of accounting and in accordance with the criteria of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand;

2. Review and approve the internal audit plan of 2008; review the result of internal audit; whereas, the Audit
Committee has given some useful recommendations for administration and has recommended the
management to correct the defects and to follow up the result of improvement and correction, and to
report the result of internal audit to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis;

3. Review and evaluate the adequacy of the proper and effective internal control system;

4. Consider and select the auditor and determine the auditor’s remunerations; give approval to the Board of
Directors to propose the same to the annual shareholder’s meeting;

5. Evaluate the performance of the Audit Committee according to the Charter of the Audit Committee and in
accordance with the code of conduct of the Stock Exchange of Thailand;

Y F
T A
e = -;..e--'h_l.%*fm

(Mr. Prasong Sukhum)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Report of Director

The Board of Directors of the Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited hereby reports its
responsibilities to the financial statements, as follows:

The Board of Directors shall assume the full responsibilities for all financial statements of the company and
financial information appeared in the annual report. The financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards in Thailand, while the company applied appropriate accounting policies, with careful
consideration and estimates and also revealed important information in Notes to Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors has maintained the effective internal control system to reasonably ensure that the
recording of accounting information was correct, complete, and enough to maintain the assets and to realize the weakness to
prevent from any corruption or abnormal operations significantly.

For this purpose, the Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee comprising independent
directors and non-executive directors responsible for the quality of financial reports and the internal control system. Comments

made by the Audit Committee on this subject are listed in the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors concluded that the company’s overall internal control system was satisfactory and
adequate to give credibility to the financial statements of the company as of December 31st, 2008.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana) (Mr. Vichai Chaithaneeyachat)
Chairman Managing Director
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Mulaanmasneiayingiu 17,941,959 32,739,724 17,941,959 32,739,724
mlsanmsdmngiedesdns gunsainazezina 3,774,979 43,193,176 3,774,979 43,193,176
lsannmasining “unsneliwnussn Ty 12 36,719,830 - 67,303,651 -
Mlsnndnuaniasy 73,261 9,037,341 73,261 9,037,341
Rudunasuanu3snsy 9 - - - 3,937,516
RulunasannRuasuszezdy 10 2,550,000 3,200,000 2,550,000 3,200,000
Aue 29,999,293 35,509,122 30,832,699 35,509,122
swela 1,009,506,837 1,665,055835 1041424064  1,668,993,351
AlBans
ﬁunummm:ﬁms 847,364,480  1,409,640,286 847,364,480  1,409,640,286
lzanelumsnng 32,592,367 77,674,276 32,692,367 77,674,276
alzanelumsudms 89,071,087 126,804,036 89,071,087 126,804,036
lganedu 10 20,967,639 - 20,967,639 -
sauplgans 989995573  1,614,118,598 989995573  1,614,118,598
flsnaualganemenisidu 19,511,264 50,937,237 51,428,491 54,874,753
lganemenstiu (21,650434)  (37,956.402) (21,650,434)  (37.956,402)
uuueils @ e anSuaeulunisnow 9 (15,842,750) 3401573 - -
ls @anu) 95 wsud 17 (17,981,920) 16,382,408 29,778,057 16,918,351
Alsnayuiuiugiu 18
Mls @anu) s (0.87) (0.10) 0.20 (0.09)

wngwaUsznausunsRudu unilseswmsidul
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o Suit 31 SuanAw 2551 waz 2550

(mia: uwm)
sUnIRudn peRuawunads ey
Alsanuitaliiafuaiean
NSy m3wazuuasamduasmy ls ¢ w
floanuazinszum wanningiions  wanningions A T3ua- gluladn 53
L3 W iy VDIUIN VoA DINWAGANNY (D1AYW) RRLY
YpAAMAD B Fufl 31 SuanAu 2549 150,000,000 450,000,000 8,309,500 23,481,726 108,635,525 (41,952,414) 698,374,337
gamqﬁﬁsﬁummﬁuamuamm - - (6,400,000) (15,475,815) - - (21,875,81b)
fls m8 w3l - - - - - 16,382,408 16,382,408
#DAANMAD & Fufl 31 FuanAu 2550 150,000,000 450,000,000 1,909,500 8,005,911 108,635,525 (25,670,006) 692,880,930
#DAANMAD & Fufl 31 FuanAu 2550 150,000,000 450,000,000 1,909,500 8,005,911 108,635,525 (25,670,006) 692,880,930
gamqﬁﬁsﬁummﬁuamuamm - - (3,900,000) (9,889,908) - - (13,789,908)
U 915 mivd - - - - - (17,981,920)  (17,981,920)
yoAAINED o YUl 31 SuanAu 2551 150,000,000 450,000,000 (1,990,500) (1,883,997) 108,635,525 (43,651,926) 661,109,102
QUMINURMZAANS
ls(@emu)
feralaliAnduade
M3k Asuuyas
nuiFouny yamGuasyuly Mls ¢ o
floonuaznazuan ndnningiionns & T3ua- elaladn 53
L33 Wy iy VDI 1IDINNNUNNY @1091) T

yDAAIVMAD W Fufl 31 SudnAu 2549 150,000,000 450,000,000 8,309,500 108,535,525 (65,731,439) 651,113,586
aﬁamiﬁﬁﬁmmﬁuamuamm - - (6,400,000) - - (6,400,000)
fls 15 w3l - - - - 16,918,351 16,918,351
yDAAIVMAD  Fufl 31 SudnAu 2550 150,000,000 450,000,000 1,909,500 108,535,525 (48,813,088) 661,631,937
yDAAIVAD W Fufl 31 FudnAu 2550 150,000,000 450,000,000 1,909,500 108,535,525 (48,813,088) 661,631,937
YAPNYRASIINTBNRUAUANAS - - (3,900,000 - - (3,900,000)
fls 15 w3l - - - - 29,778,057 29,778,057
yDAAIVMAD ® Fufl 31 FudnAn 2551 150,000,000 450,000,000 (1,990,500) 108,535,525 (19,035,031) 687,509,994

mngmalsyneswmsfudy Juntessunsiull
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SUNIINY

fin peduawuanads ula s

SUMIRULRNIZAINTS

2551 26560 25561 2550
(17,981,920) 16,382,408 29,778,057 16,918,351
56,175,219 61,334,962 56,175,219 61,334,962
8,679,782 14,804,464 8,679,782 14,804,454
(36,719,830) - (67,803,651) -
(5,407,862) (43,271,715) (5,407,862) (43,271,715)
1,632,883 78,639 1,632,883 78,639
20,967,639 - 20,967,639 -
156,842,750 (3,401,573) - -
(855,361) - (1,688,767) -
- - - (3,937,616)
(2,650,000) (3,200,000) (2,550,000) (3,200,000)
(575,997) 851,771 (575,997) 851,771
5,418,048 12,269,740 5,418,048 12,269,740
20,717,289 36,487,692 20,717,289 36,487,692
65,342,640 92,336,278 65,342,640 92,336,278
124,628,769 68,136,522 124,628,769 68,136,522
100,855,895 166,586,143 100,855,895 166,586,143
13,312,936 (5,077,070) 13,312,935 (5,077,070)
517,017 (168,119) 517,017 (158,119)
(22,745,331)  (123,665,432) (22,745,331) (123,655,432)
(11,317,464) (9,661,302) (11,317,464) (9,661,302)
(2,018,425) (7,187,641) (2,018,425) (7,187,641)
(20,193,744) (49,677,860) (20,193,744) (49,677,860)
248,282,292 131,641,619 248,282,292 131,641,619
(21,949,630) (37,419,718) (21,949,530) (37,419,718)
(1,661,363) (1,915,023) (1,661,363) (1,915,023)
224,671,399 92,306,778 224,671,399 92,306,778
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fin peduawuaads ula s wmsRulanzians

2551 26560 2561 2550

N9l N{U ANAANIIUNALYUY
Foiiou ’mmmazaﬁmzﬁ (3.435,237) (12,356,216) (3,435,237) (12,356,216)
QAU Auanmsimeens wsesdnsuazaunial 30,365,817 52,460,338 30,365,817 52,460,338
Ruiurasuarnuisnsau - 3,937,516 - 3,937,516
Ruduwasuanduamussezemidy 2,560,000 3,200,000 2,560,000 3,200,000
Ru A nSannanssuasnu 29,480,580 47,241,638 29,480,580 47,241,638
nITe {u ANAanIINAAnNY
RuibnfulgyBuasfugBusze: uan atumsiduanas (103,445,662) (49,727,629) (103,445,662) (49,727.629)
Frazfuuniuszes “uanfamsiifsasesiu (140,000,000)  (76,000000)  (140,000,000)  (76,000,000)
Ju o nslslulunanssudamidy (243,445,662)  (125,727,629)  (243445,662)  (125,727,629)
QU auazsemsiisum@u auiady 10,706,317 13,820,787 10,706,317 13,820,787
Bu AuazTIMITiu Ry anud 15,501,082 1,680,295 15,501,082 1,680,295
Ru anazsizmsiisumidu adaied 26,207,399 15,601,082 26,207,399 15,501,082
ﬁagaﬂszu Ry adaweiuEy
Nemsflilstu o

miamulusFImsume unineduiitletu o unowe 9) 190,000,000 - 190,000,000 -

wnemdsznevwmstuduy uniaeswnsidul
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Report

and financial statements
31 December 2008 and 2007

Report of Independent Auditor
To the Shareholders of Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying balance sheets in which the equity method is applied of Union
Textile Industries Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2008 and 2007, and the related
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and
have audited the separate financial statements of Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited for the
same years. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their
correctness and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Anaudit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis
for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited, as at 31 December 2008 and
2007, the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

: —y l:.,
Narong Puntawong
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3315

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 25 February 2009
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Balance sheets

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable

Related parties

Unrelated parties
Total trade accounts receivable
Amounts due from related parties
Accounts receivable from sales of assets
Inventories - net
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Investments in associated companies
Other long-term investments - net
Assets held for sale
Property, plant and equipment - net
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

10
11
12

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007
26,207,399 15,601,082 26,207,399 15,601,082
65,716,488 37,973,726 65,716,488 37,973,726
49,564,024 200,620,172 49,564,024 200,620,172

115,280,512 238,593,898 115,280,512 238,593,898
5,697,990 6,689,497 5,697,990 6,689,497

- 22,745,000 - 22,745,000
245,091,542 354,627,219 245,091,542 354,627,219
8,794,002 19,454,067 8,794,002 19,454,067
401,071,445 657,610,763 401,071,445 657,610,763
188,599,208 56,249,093 215,000,100 25,000,100
88,881,661 113,749,300 88,881,661 113,749,300
2,194,043 - 2,194,043 -
481,484,635 595,460,847 481,484,635 595,460,847
319,780 836,797 319,780 836,797
761,479,327 766,296,037 787,880,219 735,047,044

1,162,550,772

1,423,906,800

1,188,951,664

1,392,657,807
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As at 31 December 2008 and 2007
(Unit: Baht)

Balance sheets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from
financial institutions 13
Trade accounts payable
Related parties 7
Unrelated parties
Total trade accounts payable
Amounts due to related party
Short-term loans from related party
Other current liabilities
Accrued expenses
Others
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provision for employee compensation and
pension expenses
Deferred income from use of plants 12
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Registered
15,000,000 preference shares of Baht 10 each 14
45,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each

Issued and fully paid
15,000,000 preference shares of Baht 10 each 14
45,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each

Unrealised gain (loss) from change in value of investments

Available-for-sale securities of the Company 10

Available-for-sale securities of the associated company

Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 15
Unappropriated (deficit)

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

Separate financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007
103,206,984 206,637,132 103,206,984 206,637,132
94,378,404 73,229,751 94,378,404 73,229,751
14,895,066 58,789,050 14,895,066 58,789,050
109,273,470 132,018,801 109,273,470 132,018,801
910,466 1,707,303 910,466 1,707,303
160,000,000 300,000,000 160,000,000 300,000,000
15,739,662 26,868,658 15,739,662 26,868,658
2,053,583 4,972,008 2,953,583 4,972,008
392,084,165 672,203,902 392,084,165 672,203,902
44,046,272 58,821,968 44,046,272 58,821,068
65,311,233 - 65,311,233 -
109,357,505 58,821,968 109,357,505 58,821,968
501,441,670 731,025,870 501,441,670 731,025,870
150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000
450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000
600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000
150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000
450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000
600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000
(1,990,500) 1,909,500 (1,990,500) 1,909,500
(1,883,997) 8,005,911 - -
108,535,525 108,535,525 108,535,525 108,535,525
(43,551,926) (25,570,006) (19,035,031) (48,813,088)
661,109,102 692,380,930 687,509,994 661,631,937

1,162,650,772

1,423,906,800

1,188,951,664

1,392,657,807

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Income Steatments

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2008
Revenues
Sales and services income 918,447,515
Other income
Sale of scrap 17,941,959
Gains on sales of machinery, equipment and spare parts 3,774,979

Gains on disposal of assets to associated company

Exchange gains

Dividend from associated company
Dividend from other long-term investments

Others
Total revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales and services

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses

Income before finance costs

Finance costs

Share of income (loss) from investments in associates

Net income (loss) for the year

Basic earnings per share

Net income (loss)

12 36,719,830
73,261

10 2,550,000
29,999,293

2007

1,541,376,472

32,739,724
43,193,176

9,037,341

3,200,000
35,509,122

2008

918,447,515

17,941,959
3,774,979
67,803,651
73,261
2,550,000
30,832,699

2007

1,641,376,472

32,739,724
43,193,176
9,037,341
3,937,516
3,200,000
35,509,122

1,009,506,837

1,665,055,835

1,041,424,064

1,668,993,351

847,364,480  1,409,640,286 847,364,480 1,409,640,286
32,592,367 77674276 32,592,367 77,674,276
89,071,087 126,804,086 89,071,087 126,804,036

10 20,967,639 - 20,967,639 -

989,995,573  1,614,118,598 989,995,573 1,614,118,598
19,511,264 50,037,237 51,428,491 54,874,753
(21,650,434) (37,956,402)  (21,650,434)  (37,956,402)

9 (15,842,750) 3,401,573 - -

17 (17,981,920) 16,382,408 29,778,057 16,918,351

18

(0.87) (0.10) 0.20 (0.09)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements Of Changes in Shareho,ders , GQUity For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied
Unrealised gain (loss) from change
Issued and paid-up in value of investment
share capital Available-for-sale  Available-for-sale Retained earnings
Preference Ordinary securities of securities of the Appropriated - Unappropriated
shares shares the Company associate company  statutory reserve (deficit) Total
Balance as at 31 December 2006 150,000,000 450,000,000 8,309,500 23,481,726 108,535,525 (41,952,414) 698,374,337
Decrease in fair value of investments - - (6,400,000) (15,475,815) - - (21,875,815)
Net income for the year - - - - - 16,382,408 16,382,408
Balance as at 31 December 2007 150,000,000 450,000,000 1,909,500 8,005,911 108,535,525 (25,570,006) 692,880,930
Balance as at 31 December 2007 150,000,000 450,000,000 1,909,500 8,005,911 108,535,525 (25,570,006) 692,880,930
Decrease in fair value of investments - - (3,900,000) (9,889,908) - - (13,789,908)
Net loss for the year - - - - - (17,981,920) (17,981,920)
Balance as at 31 December 2008 150,000,000 450,000,000 (1,990,500) (1,883,997) 108,535,525 (43,5651,926) 661,109,102
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Separate financial statements
Unrealised gain (loss)
from change in value
of investment in
Issued and paid-up available-for-sale Retained earnings
share capital securities of Appropriated -  Unappropriated
Preference shares Ordinary shares the Company statutory reserve (deficit) Total

Balance as at 31 December 2006 150,000,000 450,000,000 8,309,500 108,535,525 (65,731,439) 651,113,586
Decrease in fair value of investments - - (6,400,000) - - (6,400,000)
Net income for the year - - - - 16,918,351 16,918,351
Balance as at 31 December 2007 150,000,000 450,000,000 1,909,500 108,535,525 (48,813,088) 661,631,937
Balance as at 31 December 2007 150,000,000 450,000,000 1,909,500 108,535,525 (48,813,088) 661,631,937
Decrease in fair value of investments - - (3,900,000) - - (3,900,000)
Net income for the year - - - - 29,778,067 29,778,067
Balance as at 31 December 2008 150,000,000 450,000,000 (1,990,500) 108,535,525 (19,035,031) 687,509,994

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statements

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation
Allowance of diminution in value of inventories
Gains on disposal of assets to associated company
Gains on sales of machinery, equipment and spare parts
Write-off of equipment
Allowance for diminution in value of investment
Share of (income) loss from investment in

associated companies
Recognition of deferred income from use of plant
Dividend from associated company
Dividend from other long-term investments
Unrealised (gains) losses on exchange
Provision for employee compensation

and pension expenses

Interest expenses

Income from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities

Operating assets (increase) decrease
Trade accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets

Operating liabilities decrease
Trade accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Provision for employees compensation

and pension expenses

Cash from operating activities
Cash paid for interest expenses
Cash paid for withholding income tax

Net cash from operating activities

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007
(17,981,920) 16,382,408 29,778,057 16,918,351
56,175,219 61,334,962 56,175,219 61,334,962
8,679,782 14,804,454 8,679,782 14,804,454
(36,719,830) - (67,803,651) -
(5,407,862) (43,271,715) (5,407,862) (43,271,715)
1,632,883 78,539 1,632,883 78,539
20,967,639 - 20,967,639 -
15,842,750 (3,401,573) - -
(855,361) - (1,688,767) -
- - - (3,937,516)
(2,550,000) (3,200,000) (2,550,000) (3,200,000)
(575,997) 851,771 (575,997) 851,771
5,418,048 12,269,740 5,418,048 12,269,740
20,717,289 36,487,692 20,717,289 36,487,692
65,342,640 92,336,278 65,342,640 92,336,278
124,528,769 68,136,522 124,528,769 68,136,522
100,855,895 166,586,143 100,855,895 166,586,143
13,312,935 (5,077,070) 13,312,935 (5,077,070)
517,017 (158,119) 517,017 (158,119)
(22,745,331)  (123,655,432) (22,745,331)  (123,655,432)
(11,317,464) (9,661,302) (11,317,464) (9,661,302)
(2,018,425) (7,187,641) (2,018,425) (7,187,641)
(20,193,744) (49,677,860) (20,193,744) (49,677,860)
248,282,292 131,641,519 248,282,202 131,641,519
(21,949,530) (37,419,718) (21,949,530) (37,419,718)
(1,661,363) (1,915,023) (1,661,363) (1,915,023)
224,671,399 92,306,778 224,671,399 92,306,778

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statements (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

(Unit: Baht)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of plant, machinery and equipment

Dividend from associated company

Dividend from other long-term investments

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Decrease in bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions

Repayment of short-term loans from related party

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplement cash flows information:
Non cash-transaction
Investment in an associated company

by in-kind assets (Note 9)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

Separate financial statements

2008 2007 2008 2007
(3,435,237) (12,356,216) (3,435,237) (12,356,216)
30,365,817 52,460,338 30,365,817 52,460,338

- 3,937,516 - 3,037,516

2,550,000 3,200,000 2,550,000 3,200,000
29,480,580 47,241,638 29,480,580 47,241,638
(103,445,662) (49,727,629)  (103,445,662) (49,727,629)
(140,000,000) (76,000,000)  (140,000,000) (76,000,000)
(243,445,662)  (125,727,629)  (243,445,662) (125,727,629
10,706,317 13,820,787 10,706,317 13,820,787
15,501,082 1,680,295 15,501,082 1,680,295
26,207,399 15,501,082 26,207,399 15,501,082
190,000,000 - 190,000,000 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements

1.2

1.3

2.2

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

General information
Corporate information

Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled
in Thailand. lts parent company is Saha-Union Public Company Limited, which was incorporated in Thailand. The
Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of textiles. It also provides bleaching and dyeing
services to some customers but the revenue from these services is relatively insignificant. The Company’s registered
address is 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak Sub District, Phrakanong District, Bangkok.

Since 16 August 2008, the Company has not provided bleaching and dyeing services.
Economic crisis

The financial crisis experienced by the United States of America over the past year has had a far reaching adverse
effect on the global economy as evidenced by sharp falls in share prices worldwide, a tight squeeze on credit including
interbank lending, failures of large financial institutions and reduced consumer confidence. The crisis has substantially
affected the business and financial plans of Thailand enterprises and asset value. Despite efforts made by governments
of many countries to contain the crisis, it remains uncertain as to when the global economy will return to normalcy. These
financial statements have been prepared on the bases of facts currently known to the Company, and on estimates and
assumptions currently considered appropriate. However, they could be adversely affected by an array of future events.
Fundamental accounting assumption

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company had sustained losses from its core business. The losses
are the result of product price pressure due to stiff competition from foreign textile manufacturers. The situation is being
closely monitored by the management, and there has been a reorientation of the business to reduce sales volume and
production overall, and focus on sales of more profitable products, as a response to current and future volatility in the
business environment. Moreover, the Company still has funds available for its operations and has received support from
its parent company. The financial statements have therefore been prepared under the going concern basis and do not
include any adjustments which might be required should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the
Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the
Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 14 September 2001, issued under the Accounting Act
B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial
statements in English language have been translated from such financial statements in Thai language.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the
accounting policies.

The separate financial statements, which present investments in associated companies presented under the cost
method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.

Adoption of new accounting standards
Accounting standards which are effective for the current year
The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued Notification No. 9/2550, 38/2550 and 62/2550 mandating the
use of new accounting standards as follows:
TAS 25 (revised 2007) Cash Flow Statements

TAS 29 (revised 2007) Leases

TAS 31 (revised 2007) Inventories

TAS 33 (revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

TAS 35 (revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 39 (revised 2007) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
TAS 41 (revised 2007) Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 43 (revised 2007) Business Combinations

TAS 49 (revised 2007) Construction Contracts

TAS 51 Intangible Assets
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3.2

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

These accounting standards become effective for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after
1 January 2008. The management has assessed the effect of these standards and believes that TAS 43, TAS 49 and
TAS 51 are not relevant to the business of the Company, while TAS 25, TAS 29, TAS 31, TAS 33, TAS 35, TAS 39 and
TAS 41 do not have any significant impact on the financial statements for the current year.
Accounting standards which are not effective for the current year

The Federation of Accounting Professions has also issued Notification No. 86/2551 mandating the use of the
following new accounting standards:
TAS 36 (revised 2007) Impairment of Assets
TAS 54 (revised 2007) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

These accounting standards will become effective for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after 1
January 2009. The management has assessed the effect of these standards and believes that they will not have any
significant impact on the financial statements for the year in which they are initially applied.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue Recognition
Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and reward of ownership of the goods have passed to the
buyers. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting discounts and
allowances.

Rendering of services

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered, taking into account the stage of completion.
Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the
estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection
experiences and analysis of debt aging.

Inventories

Finished goods and work in process are valued at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual cost) and
net realisable value. Standard cost includes all production costs and attributable factory overheads.

Raw materials and chemicals are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) and net realisable value, while
spare parts and factory supplies are valued at the lower of average cost and net realisable value. They are charged to
production costs whenever consumed.

Investments

a) Investment in available-for-sale securities is stated at fair value. Changes in the carrying amounts of securities are
recorded as separate items in shareholders’ equity until the securities are sold, when the changes are then included
in determining income.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day of the year as quoted

on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of

investments

b) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments, are stated at
cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

c) Investments in associated companies are accounted for in the financial statements in which the equity method is
applied using the equity method.

d) Investments in associated companies are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation
Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for
loss on impairment of assets (if any).
Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line basis over the
following estimated useful lives:
Assets purchased since
Assets purchased before 1 January 2008

1 January 2008 and onwards
Buildings and building improvement 20 years 20 years
Machinery and equipment 10, 20 years 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3,10 years 3, 5 years
Motor vehicles 10 years 5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation and under construction.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether directly
or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the
Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors and officers
with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at
the balance sheet date, with the exception of those covered by forward exchange contracts, which are translated at the
contracted rates.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the property, plant and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. Animpairment loss is recognised
when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use, is less than the carrying amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information available, reflects the amount that the
Company could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

Employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognised as
expenses when incurred.

Deferred income from use of plants

Deferred income arising from allowing another party to use plants is recorded at the value of investment in the
associated company which the Company has acquired through contribution of such plants as capital. The deferred
income is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over a period of 15 years in accordance with the terms of in the
land lease agreement.

Income Tax
Income tax is provided in the accounts based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

72



Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times requires
management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These
judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ. Significant judgments
and estimates are as follows:

Allowance of diminution in value of inventory

In determining an allowance of diminution in value of inventory, the management makes judgment and estimates
regarding net realisable value of the inventory, based on the amount the inventory is expected to realise. These estimates
take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the period.
Impairment of equity investments

The Company treats available-for-sale investments and other investments as impaired when the management judges
that there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence
of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment.

Property plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful
lives and salvage values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and salvage values
when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a periodical basis
and record impairment losses in the period when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying
amount. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the
review.

Employee compensation and pension expenses

Employee compensation and pension expenses are provided for in the accounts by reference to the provisions of
labour laws and the Company’s personnel regulations, and are determined based upon the probability that employees in
each age group will work until reaching their retirement age.

Trade accounts receivable
The balances of trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2008 and 2007, aged on the basis of due dates, are

summarised below.

(Unit: Baht)
2008 2007

Related parties:

Age of receivables

Not yet due 65,360,442 37,730,025
Past due less than 3 months 356,046 243,701
Total trade accounts receivable - related parties 65,716,488 37,973,726
Unrelated parties:

Age of receivables

Not yet due 45,570,198 198,978,279
Past due less than 3 months 3,993,826 1,641,893
Total trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties 49,564,024 200,620,172
Total trade accounts receivable 115,280,512 238,593,898
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7.

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties. Such transactions, which are summarised

below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the

Company and those related parties.

Transactions with parent company

Purchases of goods and raw materials

Borrowing (weight average balance
outstanding at month end)

Interest expenses

Rental expenses

Transactions with associated company

Sales of goods and raw materials
Purchase of goods
Rental income

Transactions with related companies

Sales of goods and raw materials
Purchases of goods and raw materials
Rental income

Other income

(Unit: Million Baht)

2008 2007 Pricing policy
325 462  Cost plus margin of parent company
188 320 Interest rate with reference to the loan
interest rate of local commercial bank
13 23  See “borrowing” above
- 3  Contract price
160 - Cost plus margin
7 - Cost plus margin of associated company
3 - Contract price
80 122 Cost plus margin
3 9 Cost plus margin of related companies
10 5  Contract price
2 7 Contract price

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those related parties

are as follows:

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

Associated company

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Ltd.

Related companies

Union Garment Co., Ltd. (Has common shareholders)

Union Micronclean Co., Ltd. (Shares held by the Company)

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. (Has common shareholders)

Others

Total trade accounts receivable - related parties

Amounts due from related parties

Parent company
Saha-Union Plc.

Associated company

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Ltd.

Related companies

Union Garment Co., Ltd. (Has common shareholders)

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. (Has common shareholders)

Others
Total amounts due from related parties

(Unit: Baht)

2008 2007
62,248,124 -
3,437,853 35,673,447
- 1,119,457
- 1,150,954
30,511 29,868
65,716,488 37,973,726
294,762 456,000
4,325,466 -
875,148 1,235,438
108,874 4,545,850
93,740 452,209
5,697,990 6,689,497
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Trade accounts payable - related parties

Parent company
Saha-Union Plc.
Associated company

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Ltd.

Related companies

Total trade accounts payable - related parties

Amounts due to related party

Parent company
Saha-Union Plc.
Total amounts due to related party

Short-term loans from related party
Parent company

Saha-Union Plc.

Total short-term loans from related party

Directors and management’s remuneration

92,450,573 72,857,773
1,789,409 -
138,422 371,978
94,378,404 73,229,751
910,466 1,707,303
910,466 1,707,303
160,000,000 300,000,000
160,000,000 300,000,000

In 2008 the Company paid salaries, bonus, meeting allowances and gratuities to its directors and management

totaling Baht 13.5 million (2007: Baht 14.3 million).

8. Inventories

Allowance of diminution in value of inventories

Reduction cost to net

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Cost realisable value Stock obsolescence Inventories-net
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Finished goods 88,315 155,587 (9,187) 6,544) (12,819) (21,269) 66,309 127,774
Work in process 10,019 27,906 - - - - 10,019 27,906
Raw materials and chemicals 153,168 165,047 - - (665) (50) 152,503 164,997
Spare parts and factory supplies 34,977 38,794 - - (18,716) (4,844) 16,261 33,950
Total 286,479 387,334 (9,187) (6,544) (32,200) (26,163) 245,092 354,627
9. Investments in associated companies
9.1 Details of associated companies:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements
Nature of Country of Shareholding in which the equity Separate financial
Company’s name business incorporation percentage method is applied statements
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
% %
Unifibre Co., Ltd. Agent Thailand 20.83 20.83 49,475 56,249 25,000 25,000
Ten Cate-Union Production of
Protective work wear
Fabric Asia Ltd. and safety
wear fabric Thailand 49.35 - 139,124 - 190,000 -
Total 188,599 56,249 215,000 25,000
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9.2 Share of income/loss and dividend received
During the years, the Company has recognised its share of net income/loss from investments in associated companies
in the financial statements in which the equity method is applied and dividend income in the separate financial statements as

follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements in which
the equity method is applied Separate financial statements
Share of income (loss) from investments Dividend received
Company’s name in associated companies during the year during the year
2008 2007 2008 2007
Unifibre Co., Ltd. 3,116 3,401 - 3,937
Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Ltd. (18,959) - - -
Total (15,843) 3,401 - 3,937

9.3 Summarised financial information of associates
Financial information of the associated companies is summarised below.
(Unit: Million Baht)

Total revenues Net income
Paid-up capital Total assets Total liabilities for the years (loss) for the
as at as at as at ended years ended
Company’s name 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Unifibre Co., Ltd. 120 120 245 284 7 13 24 61 14 16
Ten Cate-Union Protective
Fabric Asia Ltd. 385 - 469 - 124 - 190 - (40) -

On 24 June 2008, a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors approved a joint investment between the
Company and Ten Cate Advanced Textiles BV, a company incorporated in the Netherlands, to establish Ten Cate-Union
Protective Fabric Asia Ltd. (TCUA). The Company contributed some of the Company’s assets, valued at Baht 190 million,
in return for a holding of 49.35% in TCUA's registered capital. The jointly-owned company commenced operation on 16
August 2008.

The joint venture agreement contains certain conditions and restrictions, including a restriction on the transfer of
shares of TCUA unless prior consent has been obtained in writing from the other party.

The balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 of Ten Cate-Union Projective Fabric Asia Ltd. showed the total net
assets attributable to the Company’s investment of Baht 170 million, which is lower than the cost of the investment in the
separate financial statements. However, the Company has not set aside any allowance for impairment against this
investment since the Company’s management believes that the future benefits to be generated from the investment will
exceed the acquisition cost of the investment. Such future benefits were determined on the basis of projections of
operating income and net cash inflows of the investee company.

The share of income (loss) from the investments in these associated companies as included in the income statement
in which the equity method is applied for the year ended 31 December 2008, has been calculated from financial
statements prepared by the management of those companies, and not audited by their auditors. However, the Company’s
management believes that there would be no material differences if those financial statements had been audited by the
associated companies’ auditors.
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10.

11.

Other long-term investments

2008 2007
Shareholding  Investment  Shareholding  Investment
percentage value percentage value
% Thousand % Thousand
Baht Baht
Investment in available-for-sale securities
Saha-Union Plc. 0.33 16,191 0.33 16,191
Add: Unrealised gain (loss) from change in value
of investment (1,990) 1,909
Investment in available-for-sale securities, net 14,201 18,100
Investments in ordinary shares
Union Business Management Co., Ltd. 19.00 94,999 19.00 94,999
Union Micronclean Co., Ltd. 13.00 650 13.00 650
Investments in ordinary shares 95,649 95,649
Less: Allowance for diminution in value of investment in ordinary
shares of Union Business Management Co., Ltd. (20,968) -
Total investments in ordinary shares, net 74,681 95,649
Total other long-term investments - net 88,882 113,749

During 2008, the Company received dividends of Baht 1.25 million and Baht 1.30 million from Saha-Union Plc. and
Union Micronclean Co., Ltd., respectively (2007: Baht 1.25 million and Baht 1.95 million).

Assets held for sale
This outstanding balance represents some items of machinery and equipment which are not in use and in the
process of sale. The detail is as follow:

(Unit: Baht)
Machinery and equipment - at cost 123,615,681
Less: Accumulated depreciation (121,421,638)
Net book value 2,194,043

The Company is in the process of selling those machines and equipment of which selling prices are expected, by the
Company’s management, to exceed the machines’ net book value. Therefore, the Company does not set up the
allowance for impairment of these machinery and equipment

77



12.

Property, plant and equipment

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Furniture, Assets under
Buildings Machinery  fixtures and installation
and building and office Motor and under
Land improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles construction Total

Cost
31 December 2007 80,736 636,399 3,144,644 56,632 24,528 791 3,943,730
Additions 978 198 11 201 64 2,672 4,024
Disposals as investment in associated company - - (577,030) - - - (577,030
Disposals / write off (590) (598) (207,633) (9,242) (5,750) - (223,813)
Transfer between classes of accounts - 790 2,299 - - (3,089) -
Transfer to assets held for sale - - (123,616) - - - (123,616)
31 December 2008 81,124 636,789 2,238,675 47,591 18,842 274 3,023,295
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2007 - 580,180 2,698,507 53,239 16,343 - 3,348,269
Depreciation for the year - 9,257 44717 1,076 1,125 - 56,175
Depreciation on disposals as investment in

associated company - - (521,834) - - - (521,834)
Depreciation on disposals / write off - (598) (205,028) (8,924) (4,828) - (219,378)
Depreciation of assets held for sale - - (121,422) - - - (121,422)
31 December 2008 - 588,839 1,894,940 45,391 12,640 - 2,541,810
Net book value
31 December 2007 80,736 56,219 446,137 3,393 8,185 791 595,461
31 December 2008 81,124 47,950 343,735 2,200 6,202 274 481,485
Depreciation for the year
2007 (Baht 52 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 61,335
2008 (Baht 36 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 56,175

As at 31 December 2008, certain plant and equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The
original cost of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 1,974 million (2007: Baht 2,649 million).

As described in Note 9, during the year, the Company has contributed some of its assets as investment in Ten Cate-
Union Protective Fabric Asia Ltd. (TCUA). These consisted of machinery and equipment for bleaching and dyeing
services and plant and all structures of the dyeing factory, including the wastewater treatment plant.

The Company recorded the difference between the value of the investment and the book value of the machinery and
equipment, amounting to Baht 68 million, as “gains ondisposal of assets to associated company” in the separate
income statements during the current year. However, the Company recognised such gains in the income statements
in which the equity method in proportion to the other shareholders’ holding in TCUA (50.65%), or Baht 34 million. The
remainder of the gains will be recognised over the useful lives of these assets.

For plant and all structures of the dyeing factory, including the wastewater treatment plant, that were contributed as
investment in TCUA, the Company has not derecognised these assets from its accounts since the Company entered into
a land lease agreement allowing TCUA to use the dyeing factory as business premises for a period of 5 years, starting
from 16 August 2008. The agreement stipulates that if, for any reason, the Company does not wish to renew the lease
agreement when it expires or any event occurs to cause TCUA not to use the land and/or plant on the land, the Company
is to take back all buildings and structures, including the wastewater treatment plant, from TCUA at a price equal to the
net book value of the assets, with depreciation being calculated according to the straight-line method over a period of no
more than 15 years from the date of contribution. The Company therefore recorded the value of the investment,
amounting to Baht 67 million, under the caption of “Deferred income from use of plants” in the balance sheet and
amortises it to revenue over a period of 15 years.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions
The balance as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following:

(Unit: Baht)
Interest rate
(percent per annum) 2008 2007
Bank overdrafts 6.63-7.00 181,038 1,817,086
Short-term loans from banks 4.00-5.50 95,000,000 200,000,000
Trust receipts 5.37-6.66 8,025,946 4,820,046
Total 103,206,984 206,637,132

The above credit facilities are unsecured; however, the Company has undertaken not to dispose of or transfer or
create any obligations on its immovable properties as specified in the credit facilities agreement, unless prior consent has
been obtained in writing from the banks.

Preference shares

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the preference shareholders are entitled to receive a dividend
equal to 14% of the paid up value of the shares each year, in preference to the ordinary shareholders. In years in which
the Company is unable to pay any or any of the dividend due, the unpaid dividend may be accumulated for up to 7 years.
In addition, if ordinary shareholders receive a dividend in excess of 14% of the par value of the shares in any year, the
preference shareholders are entitled to receive a dividend at the same rate. Upon dissolution of the Company, the
preference shareholders are entitled to return of capital in preference to the common shareholders. Apart from the
aforementioned rights, ordinary and preference shareholders have the same rights.

The cumulative unpaid dividend entitlements of the preference shareholders as of 31 December 2008 total Baht 139
million (2007: Baht 132 million).

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a
statutory reserve at least 5% ofits net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the
reserve reaches 10% of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

However, the Company’s regulations require the Company to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 10% of its net
income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 25% of the registered
capital.

Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2008 2007
Salary and wages and other employee benefits 160,231,707 330,464,740
Depreciation 56,175,219 61,334,962
Utilities expenses 111,245,096 213,398,655
Raw materials and consumables used 494,888,079 833,117,370
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process 85,159,029 66,229,940

Loss on impairment of other long-term investment 20,967,883 -

Corporate income tax
The Company is not liable to corporate income tax for the year 2008 and 2007 due to tax loss brought forward.
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18. Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per shareis calculated by dividing the net income (loss) for the year, after deducting the dividend
payable to the preference shareholders, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
The following table sets forth the computation of basic earnings per share:
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied
For the years ended 31 December
Weighted average number Loss
Net income (loss) of ordinary shares per share
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Thousand Baht Thousand Baht Thousand shares ~ Thousand shares  Baht  Baht
Net income (loss) (17,982) 16,382 45,000 45,000
Less: Dividend of preference shares (21,000) (21,000) - -
Net loss of ordinary shares (38,982) (4,618) 45,000 45,000 (0.87) (0.10)
Separate financial statements
For the years ended 31 December
Weighted average number Earnings (loss)
Net income (loss) of ordinary shares per share
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Thousand Baht  Thousand Baht Thousand shares ~ Thousand shares  Baht  Baht
Net income 29,778 16,918 45,000 45,000
Less: Dividend of preference shares (21,000) (21,000) - -
Net income (loss) of ordinary shares 8,778 (4,082) 45,000 45,000 0.20 (0.09)
19. Segment information
The Company’s operations principally involve a single business segment, the manufacture and distribution of
textiles, which is carried only in Thailand. As a result, all of the revenues, operating income (loss) and assets as reflected
in these financial statements pertain to this business segment and geographic area. During 2008, the Company had
export sales amounting to Baht 435.4 million (2007: Baht 917.0 million).
20. Provident fund
The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund
Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 3 percent of basic salary.
The fund, which is managed by Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in
accordance with the fund rules. During the year 2008, the Company contributed Baht 3,155,119 (2007: Baht 6,146,606)
to the fund.
21. Commitment and contingent liabilities
21.1 Operating lease commitment
The Company has entered into a lease agreement in respect of the lease of car rental. The terms of the agreement
are generally within 1 year. The operating lease agreement is non-cancelable.
As at 31 December 2008, future minimum lease payments required unde r this non-cancellable operating lease
contract were payable within 1 year amounting to Baht 0.2 million.
21.2 Guarantees
As at 31 December 2008, there were outstanding bank guarantees of Baht 24 million issued by banks on behalf of
the Company to guarantee the usage of electricity.
22. Financial instruments
22.1 Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 48 “Financial Instruments:

80



Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, investments,
and short - term loans. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is
described below.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable and other receivable. The
Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore does not
expect to incur material financial losses. In addition, the Company does not have high concentrations of credit risk since
it has a large customer base. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of trade accounts
receivable and other receivable, as stated in the balance sheet.
Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, bank overdrafts, and short-term
borrowings. However, since most of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates, the interest
rate risk of the Company is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2008 classified by type of interest rates are summarised
in the table below.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

Fixed Floating
interest interest Non-interest Effective
rate rate bearing Total interest rate
(Million Baht) (% p.a.)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 26.2 - 26.2 0.75
Trade accounts receivable - - 115.3 115.3 -
Investments in associated companies - - 188.6 188.6 -
Other long-term investments - - 88.9 88.9 -
Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions - 103.2 - 103.2 4.00-7.00
Trade accounts payable - - 109.3 109.3 -
Short-term loans from related party - 160.0 - 160.0 6.70-7.10
Separate financial statements
Fixed Floating
interest interest Non-interest Effective
rate rate bearing Total interest rate
(Million Baht) (% p.a.)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 26.2 - 26.2 0.75
Trade accounts receivable - - 115.3 115.3 -
Investments in associated companies - - 215.0 215.0 -
Other long-term investments - - 88.9 88.9 -
Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions - 103.2 - 103.2 4.00-7.00
Trade accounts payable - - 109.3 109.3 -
Short-term loans from related party - 160.0 - 160.0 6.70-7.10
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22.2

23.

24,

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading transactions that are denominated in
foreign currencies. The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into forward exchange contracts when it
considers appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts mature within one year.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December 2008 are

summarised below.

Financial Financial Average exchange rate
Foreign currency assets liabilities as at 31 December 2008
(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 0.1 0.2 34.9437
Euro 0.7 - 49.2662
Foreign exchange contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2008 are summarised below.
Foreign currency Sold amount Contractual exchange rate to sold
(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 0.6 31.90 - 35.28
Euro 2.1 44.70 - 49.78

Fair value of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear floating interest rates, their
fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the balance sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the financial
instrument or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has an appropriate financial
structure and preserves the ability to continue its business as a going concern.

As at 31 December 2008, debt to equity ratio in the balance sheets, in which the equity method is applied, was
0.76:1 (2007: 1.06:1) and debt to equity ratio in the separate financial statements was 0.73 (2007: 1.10:1).

Approval of financial statements
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised directors on 25 February 2009.
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